
 

 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

  

 
1040 County Road 4, Saint Cloud, MN 56303-0643 

T. 320.252.7568 F. 320.252.6557 

 

AGENDA 

APO TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, NOV. 20, 2024 – 10 A.M. 

STEARNS COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 
455-28TH AVE. S, WAITE PARK 

MS TEAMS OPTION AVAILABLE BY REQUEST 

1. Introductions 

2. Public Comment Period 

3. Consideration of Consent Agenda Items (Attachment A) 
a. Approve minutes of Oct. 31, 2024, TAC meeting (Attachment A) 

 

4. Consideration of administrative modifications to the FY 2025-2028 Transportation 
Improvement Program (Attachment B), Vicki Johnson, Senior Transportation Planner 

a. Suggested Action: Recommend Policy Board approval. 

5. Future Regional Arterials and Collectors Project Management Team (PMT) coordination 
discussion (Attachments C1-C6), Angie Stenson, Senior Transportation Planner with 
Bolton & Menk 

a. Suggested Action: Consensus to complete the final model run. 

6. Other Business & Announcements 

7. Adjournment

  

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


 

E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

English 

The Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization (APO) fully complies with the Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Executive Order 12898, 
Executive Order 13116 and related statutes and regulations. The APO is accessible to all persons of 
all abilities. A person who requires a modification or accommodation, auxiliary aids, translation 
services, interpreter services, etc., in order to participate in a public meeting, including receiving 
this agenda and/or attachments in an alternative format, or language please contact the APO at 
320-252-7568 or at admin@stcloudapo.org at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting. 

 
Somali 

Ururka Qorsheynta Deegaanka ee Cloud Cloud (APO) wuxuu si buuxda u waafaqsanahay Cinwaanka 
VI ee Xuquuqda Xuquuqda Rayidka ee 1964, Cinwaanka II ee Sharciga Naafada Mareykanka ee 
1990, Amarka Fulinta 12898, Amarka Fulinta 13116 iyo qawaaniinta iyo qawaaniinta la xiriira. APO 
waa u furan tahay dhammaan dadka awooda oo dhan. Qofka u baahan dib-u-habeyn ama dejin, 
caawimaad gargaar ah, adeegyo turjumaad, adeegyo turjubaan, iwm, si uu uga qeyb galo kulan 
dadweyne, oo ay ku jiraan helitaanka  ajendahaan iyo / ama ku lifaaqan qaab kale, ama luqadda 
fadlan la xiriir APO. 320-252- 7568 ama at admin@stcloudapo.org ugu yaraan toddobo (7) 
maalmood kahor kulanka. 

 
 
Spanish 

La Organización de Planificación del Área de Saint Cloud (APO en inglés) cumple plenamente con el 
Título VI de la Ley de Derechos Civiles de 1964, con el Título II de la Ley sobre los Estadounidenses 
con Discapacidad de 1990), de la Orden Ejecutiva 12898, de la Orden Ejecutiva 13116 y los 
estatutos y reglamentos relacionados. La APO es accesible para todas las personas de todas las 
capacidades. Una persona que requiere una modificación o acomodación, ayudas auxiliares, 
servicios de traducción, servicios de interpretación, etc., para poder participar en una reunión 
pública, incluyendo recibir esta agenda y/o archivos adjuntos en un formato o idioma alternativo, 
por favor, contacta a la APO al número de teléfono 320-252-7568 o al admin@stcloudapo.org al 
menos siete (7) días antes de la reunión. 

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org
mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org
mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org
mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


1 

SAINT CLOUD AREA PLANNING ORGANIZATION TECHNICAL ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE (TAC) MEETING 
Thursday, Oct. 31 @ 10 a.m. 

A meeting of the Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization's (APO’s) Technical 
Advisory Committee (TAC) was held at 10 a.m. Thursday, Oct. 31, 2024. Senior 
Transportation Planner Vicki Johnson presided with the following people in 
attendance: 

Voting Members: 
Matt Glaesman City of Saint Cloud 
Zac Borgerding City of Saint Cloud  
Michael Kedrowski Saint Cloud Metro Bus 
Jodi Teich Stearns County  
Chris Byrd Benton County 
David Roedel Sherburne County 
Randy Sabart City of Saint Joseph  
Kari Haakonson City of Sartell  

Non-Member Attendees: 
Vicki Johnson  APO, Senior Planner 
Alex McKenzie  APO, Associate Planner 
Trina Ness   APO, Administrative Specialist 
Dylan Edwards   Bolton & Menk 
Madison Richard    Bolton & Menk 

Online Attendees: 
Jeff Lenz MnDOT District 3 [Alternate for Steve Voss] 
James Stapfer    APO, Planning Technician 
Andrew Babb   Bolton & Menk 
Angie Stenson   Bolton & Menk 
Ian Jacobson    Bolton & Menk 
Kevin Mackey   Bolton & Menk 
Dean Chamberlain   Toole Design 
Kevin Kroll    Toole Design 
Susan Weber   FTA 
Mike Ginnaty   MnDOT District 3 Engineer 
Andrew Witter   Sherburne County 

Introductions were made. 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 

No members of the public were present. 

Attachment A



2 
 

CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Approve minutes of the Sept. 26, 2024, TAC meeting. 

b. Receive staff report of Oct. 3, 2024, Central Minnesota Area 
Transportation Partnership (ATP-3) meeting.  

c. Receive staff report of Oct. 10, 2024, Policy Board meeting. 

Mr. Kedrowski made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda items. Mr. Byrd 
seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

 

CONSIDERATION OF THE APPLICANTS FOR THE FY 2029 HIGHWAY SAFETY 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (HSIP) SOLICIATION. 

Ms. Johnson provided a review of the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 
federal formula program. The goal of the HSIP is to achieve a significant reduction 
in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads and roads on tribal lands. 
This funding source requires a 10% local match with a maximum cap for a project 
being $750,000 per location. She stated that the 2026-2029 HSIP solicitation 
kicked off in early September by MnDOT’s Office of Traffic Engineering (OTE). 
Applications are due to OTE by no later than Wednesday, Nov. 27, 2024.  

HSIP projects occurring within the APO’s planning area must be reviewed by the 
APO’s TAC and Policy Board prior to being submitted for funding consideration. All 
proactive/data driven projects will receive equal prioritization. All reactive projects 
will be subject to discussion based preliminary rankings by the TAC with final 
rankings/prioritization being handled at the Policy Board level.  

Stearns County has indicated their intent to apply for this solicitation with the 
following projects: 

• Proactive/Data-Driven: Installation of rural intersection lighting at several 
locations throughout the county including the following intersections within 
the APO’s planning area: MN 15 at CSAH 74 and CSAH 6 at CSAH 74.  

• Proactive/Data-Driven: Ground-in wet reflective edge lines throughout the 
county including the following roadways within the APO’s planning area: 

o CSAH 4 between CSAH 3 and CSAH 2. 

o CSAH 3 between Norway Road and northern county line.  

o CSAH 47 from MN 23 to MN 15.  

o CSAH 8 from MN 23 to MN 15.  

Ms. Teich motioned to recommend Policy Board ranking/prioritization for HSIP 
funding consideration. Mr. Byrd seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

 

FUTURE REGIONAL ARTERIALS AND COLLECTORS PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
TEAM COORDINATION DISCUSSION 

Ms. Stenson presented the agenda for the Future Regional and Arterials and 

Attachment A



3 
 

Collectors discussion. She reviewed the process and steps taken thus far in the 
study. Mr. Babb stated working in conjunction with the jurisdictions, test segments 
were identified. These segments included ones identified in the APO’s Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan (MTP), ones found within local planning efforts, and ones 
identified in conversations over the course of this study. From there, Mr. Babb 
outlined the various context considerations used to develop the initial future 
functional classification model run. This included having an understanding of system 
spacing (such as a half-mile buffer around minor arterials, major collectors, and 
minor collectors as well as a 3-mile buffer around interstates and principal arterials) 
and growth area considerations in both residential and employment densities 
identified in the APO’s MTP. 

Mr. Babb stated after the initial test model run was completed, the consultant team 
was able to gain a better understanding of future traffic volumes on these 
roadways. 

Ms. Stenson discussed the environmental context analysis that was completed on 
the initial test network. This included overlaying approximately 16 different 
environmental layers on a map with the proposed functional classification map. This 
analysis was also discussed with several local environmental planners in the region. 
Ms. Stenson stated segments were flagged for each environmental factor impacted. 
In the web map, this is separated into segments with the highest number of flags 
(highest 10% of segments and highest 25% of segments impacted). Mr. Glaseman 
asked about the methodology involved in flagging segments and if any weight was 
placed on some of these environmental factors. His concern was that not all 
environmental processes are treated the same. So, while one area may have 
multiple flags the environmental context could be substantially easier to address 
than one with that has maybe one or two flags. Ms. Stenson stated for the 
environmental section, all areas of concern were treated the same. She noted in the 
narrative/final documentation, it would be indicated that the environmental section 
would be structured like a checklist table denoting the various environmental 
impacts, but then on the project pages it would provide more detailed context of 
what and how environmental concerns would need to be addressed. 

Ms. Stenson also provided information on recommendations to update the existing 
functional classification on 12 roadway segments. She indicated six segments the 
consultant team would recommend upgrading the existing functional classification 
from major collector to minor arterial. An additional six segments are recommended 
to be upgraded from minor collector to major collector.  

Ms. Stenson stated the next steps will be to receive comments from the TAC on 
public review materials by Nov. 5, 2024. A 30-day public comment period will 
commence starting Nov. 12, 2024 through Dec. 13. Ms. Stenson said an open 
house is scheduled to be held from 3-4 p.m. on Thursday, Nov. 14, 2024, at the 
Great River Regional Library Bremer Meeting Room. At the next TAC meeting – 
slated for Nov. 20 – Ms. Stenson hopes to present the feedback heard on the draft 
network, provide study memos for the TAC to review, and receive direction on the 
final model run. 

Attachment A



4 
 

Mr. Glaesman recommended approval to release draft network for public comment. 
Ms. Teich seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

 

SAFE STREETS AND ROADS FOR ALL (SS4A) PROJECT MANAGEMENT TEAM 
COORDINATION DISCUSSION 

Ms. Stenson presented the agenda for discussion regarding SS4A.  

Mr. Edwards began the SS4A discussion with an overview of the feedback received 
during the Phase I community engagement process. This recap included an 
overview of the number of survey responses received as well as the number of 
individual comments received on the INPUTiD interactive web map. Mr. Edwards 
provided a demographic breakdown of the commenters as well as some of the 
specific comments received during the engagement efforts. Based upon the 
comments received, Mr. Edwards said the top three priorities were: 

• Reduce distracted driving. 
• Increase physical separation between people driving and people walking, 

rolling, or bicycling. 
• Improve safety for people crossing the street. 

Mr. Kroll provided information on the SS4A Descriptive Safety Analysis (DSA). The 
DSA focused on fatal and serious injury (FSI) crashes in the urbanized area 
between 2019 and 2023. As part of the DSA, Mr. Kroll covered topics such as 
overall crash trends; vulnerable road user crashes; FSI crashes by time of day and 
day of week; crashes by mode and crash severity; crashes by mode and city; 
collision types; contributing factors; weather; road conditions; lighting; speed; and 
demographics. In addition, Mr. Kroll presented on the region’s High Injury Network 
(HIN). The HIN serves as a means to identify roadway segments with the highest 
densities of FSI crashes. Mr. Kroll provided an overview of the methodology used to 
determine the HIN and presented maps on the HIN for all modes, motor vehicles, 
bicycles, pedestrians, and motorcycles. 

Mr. Mackey presented information related to the big data analysis. Information 
obtained through the big data analysis process was trying to understand the 
following: 

• How far are people traveling? 
• Where are more walking and biking trips occurring? 
• How does this data align with crash history? Especially pedestrian and 

bicycle crashes. 
• Data to supplement issues identification and development of potential 

projects. 

Data to complete this analysis was sourced from StreetLight. 

The Big Data Analysis concluded: 

• Trips under 1 mile (that could be made by walking if users feel 
safe/comfortable) were concentrated near the intersection of MN 15 and MN 
23. However, these roadways pose a significant barrier.  

Attachment A



5 
 

• Trips under 2 miles (that could be done by bike if users feel 
safe/comfortable) were also concentrated near the intersection of MN 15 and 
MN 23. 

• Generally, the reported trips made by bike was relatively low – less than 1% 
-- with the highest percentage of bike mode share occurring in Sartell. 

• Pedestrian mode share across the metro is around 10% and his the highest 
near the various colleges. Other notably high areas of pedestrian activity 
near Waite Park business corridor and near VA medical center. 

Additional work on the Big Data Analysis was outlined by Mr. Mackey. This included 
providing more detailed comparisons on the HIN and crash data as well as 
incorporating some equity layers. 

Ms. Stenson concluded with the next steps which consist of review and feedback on 
the DSA memo and the HIN Analysis memo. At the January TAC meeting, Ms. 
Stenson hopes to: 

• Discuss safety policy priorities in context of the existing safety analysis. 
• Understand equity spatial analysis in the context of the HIN.  
• Identify highest priority HIN corridors for each city by mode. 
• Provide an overview of safety countermeasures and safety solutions. 

February will bring agency focus groups to develop safety solutions for priority 
locations by city. In March Bolton & Menk hopes to present and discuss the safety 
priority project list by agency and confirm the next steps for concept design. Ms. 
Johnson informed Ms. Stenson that the APO does not have a January meeting due 
to the Engineers’ Conference, and discussions will be held as to which February 
meeting the items earmarked for January will be presented at. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

• Letter of Intent (LOI) Deadline is Nov. 1, 2024, for Transportation 
Alternatives (TA), PROTECT (3pm), and Carbon Reduction Program (3pm). 

• Status Update forms deadline is Nov. 15, 2024 
• APO staff grant review/assistance is available 
• Local Partnership Program (LPP) was released on Oct. 30, 2024 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:49 a.m. 
 

Attachment A



E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org

1040 County Road 4, Saint Cloud, MN 56303-0643 

T. 320.252.7568 F. 320.252.6557

TO: Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization Technical Advisory Committee 
FROM: Vicki Johnson, Senior Transportation Planner 
RE: FY 2025-2028 Transportation Improvement Program Amendments  
DATE: Nov. 14, 2024 

One of the responsibilities of the Saint Cloud Area Planning Organization (APO), as outlined 
by the Federal Government, is to develop and maintain a Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP). The TIP is the document that programs federal funds for transportation 
improvements in the APO’s Metropolitan Planning Area (MPA). Decisions about 
transportation investments require collaboration and cooperation between different levels 
of government and neighboring agencies and jurisdictions. As a document, the TIP reports 
how the various agencies and jurisdictions within the MPA have prioritized their use of 
limited Federal highway and transit funding. 

Administrative modifications have been proposed to the APO’s FY 2025-2028 TIP from the 
City of Saint Cloud and the City of Sartell. 

City of Saint Cloud 

• 2025
o 162-120-008. Due to changes with the larger roadway reconstruction project on Lincoln

Avenue (a project that will be done at the same time but will be handled through a
separate process), the City is looking to increase the width of the proposed sidewalk along
Lincoln Avenue. This has resulted in an increase in the project cost from $125,000 to
$272,000. In addition, to coincide with the existing Lincoln Avenue reconstruction project,
the city is seeking to AC this project to be done in the same construction year. This will
result in this project being moved to FY 2025 with an AC Payback in 2026. New description
is as follows: **AC**CRP**LINCOLN AVE SE; CONSTRUCT SIDEWALK FROM 4TH STREET SE
TO 7TH ST SE IN THE CITY OF ST CLOUD (PAYBACK IN 2026). Funding breakdown is as
follows: STIP Total: $176,667; Total AC: $95,333; Other/Local: $176,667; Project Total:
$272,000.

• 2026
o 162-120-008AC. Due to changes with the larger roadway reconstruction project on

Lincoln Avenue (a project that will be done at the same time but will be handled through a
separate process), the City is looking to increase the width of the proposed sidewalk along
Lincoln Avenue. This has resulted in an increase in the project cost from $125,000 to
$272,000. In addition, to coincide with the existing Lincoln Avenue reconstruction project,
the city is seeking to AC this project to be done in the same construction year. This will
result in this project being moved to FY 2025 with an AC Payback in 2026. New description
is as follows: **AC**CRP**LINCOLN AVE SE; CONSTRUCT SIDEWALK FROM 4TH STREET SE
TO 7TH ST SE IN THE CITY OF ST CLOUD (PAYBACK 1 OF 1). Funding breakdown is as
follows: STIP Total: $95,333; Target AC Payback: $95,333; Total AC Payback: $95,333.

City of Sartell 

• 2025

Attachment B

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org


E. admin@stcloudapo.org W. stcloudapo.org 

o 220-070-001. PINECONE ROAD/7TH ST NORTH INTERSECTION, INSTALL SIGNAL SYSTEM. 
During meetings with MnDOT District 3 State Aid, the city has been instructed to update 
the project description to more accurately reflect the scope of the project. In addition, due 
to increased lead times needed to purchase materials for this project, the city is requesting 
to advance construct this project from its original 2026 programmed year to 2025. Updated 
description is as follows: **AC**PINECONE ROAD/7TH ST N INTERSECTION AND 
PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS (PAYBACK IN 2026). Funding breakdown is as follows: STIP 
Total: $150,000; Total AC: $400,000; Other/Local: $150,000; Project Total: $550,000. 

• 2026 
o 220-070-001AC. PINECONE ROAD/7TH ST NORTH INTERSECTION, INSTALL SIGNAL 

SYSTEM. During meetings with MnDOT District 3 State Aid, the city has been instructed to 
update the project description to more accurately reflect the scope of the project. In 
addition, due to increased lead times needed to purchase materials for this project, the city 
is requesting to advance construct this project from its original 2026 programmed year to 
2025. Updated description is as follows: **AC**PINECONE ROAD/7TH ST N INTERSECTION 
AND PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS (PAYBACK 1 of 1). Funding breakdown is as follows: 
STIP Total: $400,000; Target AC Payback: $400,000; Total AC Payback: $400,000. 

 

With all the proposed changes, fiscal constraint has been maintained for each jurisdiction. 

Per the APO’s Stakeholder Engagement Plan (SEP) (https://stcloudapo.org/current-
plans/current-sep-title-vi-doc/), administrative modifications to the TIP do not require 
public engagement. However, these do need to be reviewed by the APO’s TAC as well as 
receive Policy Board approval. 

 

Suggested Action: Recommend Policy Board approval. 

Attachment B

mailto:admin@stcloudapo.org
https://stcloudapo.org/current-plans/current-sep-title-vi-doc/


Future Regional Arterials and Collectors Study  
St. Cloud Area Planning Organization Technical Advisory Committee 
November 20, 2024 
Agenda  

1. Public Engagement
a. Information: Open House Recap and Comments Received to Date

1. Project Website: St. Cloud Regional Future Arterials & Collectors Study
2. Online Survey: https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/APOarterials
3. Public-Facing Webmap:

https://bmi.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/sidebar/index.html?appid=53c1
7af9c2bd40a89d4df515c0214a39

2. Future Functional Classification System Vision
a. Discussion: Next Steps for Travel Demand Model Run of System Vision

3. Technical Memo Review
a. Discussion: Feedback Requested by December 13th

1. Access Spacing Guidance Best Practices Memo
2. Right of Way Preservation Best Practices Memo
3. Existing Functional Classification Conditions Screening Memo
4. Future Functional Classification Context Analysis and System Vision Memo

4. Next Steps
a. 30-day Public Comment Period through December 13th

b. Study Action Requested at Next TAC meeting

• Reference: Full TAC Webmap of Study Segments, Context Analysis Information, and Future
Functional Classification System Vision
https://bmi.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/sidebar/index.html?appid=9a57ac10b4c84867
b2d5c2e9ea3d06e3

Attachment C1

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/b1b79f4386004293aff52c3b7027f563
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/APOarterials
https://bmi.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/sidebar/index.html?appid=53c17af9c2bd40a89d4df515c0214a39
https://bmi.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/sidebar/index.html?appid=53c17af9c2bd40a89d4df515c0214a39
https://bmi.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/sidebar/index.html?appid=9a57ac10b4c84867b2d5c2e9ea3d06e3
https://bmi.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/sidebar/index.html?appid=9a57ac10b4c84867b2d5c2e9ea3d06e3


TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

Date: November 13, 2024 

To: St. Cloud Area Planning Organization (APO) Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

From: Bolton & Menk Future Functional Class Arterial and Collector Study Team 

Subject: Task 4.1 Access Spacing Guidance Inventory 

I. Overview
This memo provides information on access spacing guidelines by St. Cloud APO member agencies and 
professional transportation planning and engineering best practices. In order for arterial or collector 
roadways to function as intended, it is important to limit how often intersecting traffic is given access to 
the corridor, thus limiting the frequency of traffic conflicts. These guidelines encourage planners and 
engineers to permit the appropriate spacing of accesses onto roads based on functional classification 
and intensity of development. 

The study team reviewed APO member agency access spacing guidance, including the Minnesota 
Department of Transportation (MnDOT), the three counties, and five cities. The goal of this memo is to 
provide standard definitions and compile existing access guidance to understand local agency 
approaches to this area. This memo provides a mutual understanding of access spacing practices in the 
region and a comprehensive overview of access spacing guidance best practices.  

II. APO Member Agencies’ Access Management
The St. Cloud APO does not currently have access management guidelines in their planning or policy 
documents. Access management for the region is currently guided by local agency policy with all three 
counties and five member agency cities addressing access management through local policies, 
ordinances, or guidance. Staff reviewed relevant land use plans, zoning, and transportation-related 
documents for Benton, Sherburne, and Stearns counties and the cities of Sartell, Sauk Rapids, St. Cloud, 
St. Joseph, and Waite Park. The following is a summary of each agency’s references to access spacing. 

Benton County 

• Benton County adopted “Highway Department Access and Right of Way Width Guidelines” in 2009.
All new, modified, and/or changed use access(es) onto county roads are subject to these guidelines.
Unless noted, these guidelines do not specify area types, such as urban or rural.

• These guidelines detail general requirements, such as alignment of accesses, culverts, and
permitting. Additionally, only one access is allowed per property/parcel and will be shared between
properties/parcels whenever possible and practical. Additional access spacing requirements are
summarized as follows:

Benton County Access 
Management 

Principal 
Arterial 

Minor Arterial; Major 
Collector (ADT 1000+) 

Minor/Local 
Collector 

Local Roadways 
(Rural Town Sites) 

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 2 
 

  

 

New Access Requirements 
(Same Side of the Road) 1,280 feet 480 feet 330 feet 100 feet 

Additional considerations to the above information include:  

• Field access(es) will be spaced in a one access per 40-acre frontage. 
• When a development generates more than 400 ADT, minimum access spacing of 480 feet is 

required. 
• Access widths range from 24-40 feet, depending on the land use. 

 

Sherburne County 

Sherburne County adopted a Transportation Plan in 2019 which includes access management guidelines 
in Chapter 7, Implementation Plan. These guidelines have been used to review new developments, 
proposed roadway connections, and part of reconstruction projects. The 2019 Transportation Plan 
updated these guidelines to be tied to a roadways posted speeds rather than land use categories of 
rural, urbanizing, and urban core. The guidance is also tied to the designated proposed future functional 
classification from the transportation plan.  

 

 

  

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 3 
 

  

 

 

Roadway 
Functional 

Classification 
Speed 

Intersection Spacing 
Signal Spacing Private Access 

Full Access Conditional Secondary 

Minor 
Arterial 

50-55 mph 1/2 mile 1/4 mile 1/2 mile 
660 feet where 

feasible or subject to 
conditions 

40-45 mph 1/4 mile 1/8 mile 1/4 mile 
660 feet where 

feasible or subject to 
conditions 

< 40 mph 300 – 660 feet depending on block 
length 1/4 mile Permitted subject to 

conditions 

Collector 

50-55 mph 1/2 mile 1/4 mile 1/2 mile 
660 feet where 

feasible or subject to 
conditions 

40-45 mph 1/4 mile 1/8 mile 1/4 mile 
660 feet where 

feasible or subject to 
conditions 

< 40 mph 300’ – 660 feet depending on block 
length 1/8 mile Permitted subject to 

conditions 

Local 

50-55 mph 1/4 mile NA 330 feet where 
feasible 

40-45 mph 1/4 mile NA 330 feet where 
feasible 

< 40 mph 300’ – 660 feet depending on block 
length As warranted 330 feet where 

feasible 
1 Proposed road intersections must meet minimum county sight distance requirements. 
2 Residential accesses should meet minimum stop sight distances. 
3 Sherburne County has the authority to require a traffic study (scope determined by the county) for all 
developments at the developer’s expense. 
4 By policy, the county requires elimination, consolidation, and shared accesses. 
5 Access permits are required. The access permit will control the width, placement, and construction. 
6 Additional access may be permitted as right-in/out or temporary; however, other conditions must be satisfied. 
7 Turn lanes are required under several conditions. See Section 7.7 (2019 Transportation Plan) Development Review 
Process. 
8 Private access and conditions are defined in separate tables. 

  

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 4 
 

  

 

Stearns County 

The Stearns County 2040 Transportation Plan, adopted in 2016, includes access management guidelines 
in Chapter 6, Implementation Plan. The plan specifically notes that these standards were developed to 
reflect those adopted by MnDOT, the St. Cloud APO, and surrounding counties such as Sherburne and 
Wright Counties. These access spacing guidelines are summarized in the following table.  

Facility 
Type 

Area 
Type 

Typical Facility 
Characteristics/ 

Conditions 

Intersection 
Design/Control 

Intersection 
Spacing2 

Driveway 
Spacing3 

Minimum 
Signal 

Spacing 

Principal 
Arterial 

Rural 

Interstate/ 
Freeway Interchanges Only 1 mile NA NA 

Non-Freeways Interchanges/Traffic 
Signals 1 mile 1/2 mile 1 mile 

Urbanized 

Interstate/ 
Freeway Interchanges Only 1 mile NA NA 

Non-Freeways 
Interchanges/Traffic 
Signals/Innovative 

Intersections1 
1/2 mile 1/4 mile 1/2 mile 

Urban 
Core 

Interstate/ 
Freeway Interchanges Only 1 mile NA NA 

Non-Freeways 
Interchanges/Traffic 
Signals/Innovative 

Intersections1 
1/2 mile 1/4 mile 1/2 mile 

Minor 
Arterial 

Rural 4-Lane/2-Lane Traffic Signals/Stop Sign 
Control 1/2 mile 1/4 mile 1/2 mile 

Urbanized 4-Lane Divided/ 
4-Lane Undivided 

Traffic Signals/Stop Sign 
Control 1/4 mile 660 feet 1/4 mile 

Urban 
Core 

4-Lane Divided/ 
4-Land Undivided 

Traffic Signals/Stop Sign 
Control 

330 – 660 
feet 330 feet 1/4 mile 

Collector 

Rural 2-Lane Stop Sign Control 1/2 mile 1/8 – 1/4 
mile*** NA 

Urbanized 4-Lane Undivided/ 
3-Lane/2-Lane 

Traffic Signals/Stop Sign 
Control 1/4 mile 660 feet 1/4 mile 

Urban 
Core 

4-Lane Undivided/ 
3-Lane/2-Lane 

Traffic Signals/Stop Sign 
Control 

330 – 660 
feet 150 feet 1/8 – 1/4 

mile 

*All distances are potential minimums. Individual corridors will be handled on a case-by-case basis. 
**When addressing state-owned facilities, refer to MnDOT Access Management Manual. 
***To be determined by the County based on traffic volumes and driveway use. 
1 Reduce Conflict Intersections (RCI), “Loons,” etc. 
2 Primary full movement intersection 
3 Consolidate driveways whenever possible 
 

  

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 5 
 

  

 

Sartell 

Title 11 of the Sartell City Code, Subdivision Regulations, details design standards for new subdivisions in 
Chapter 5. As found in 11-5-2(P), “Where a proposed plat fronts or is adjacent to an arterial or collector 
roadway as designated by the Comprehensive Plan and/or regional transportation plan(s), minimum 
spacing between access points to such thoroughfares shall be as follows except where impractical or 
impossible due to existing property divisions or topography:” 

Street Type Distance (Urban Core) Distance (Urbanizing Area) 

Principal Arterial 330 feet 1,760 feet (1/3 mile) 
Minor Arterial 330 feet 1,320 feet (1/4 mile) 
Collector 330 feet 660 feet (1/8 mile) 
Local 330 feet 330 feet 

 

Sauk Rapids 

Sauk Rapids 2011 Transportation Plan discusses access management guidelines in Section 3.3. When 
guidelines cannot be met, it suggests several alternative strategies: shared access points or cross access 
easements for adjacent properties; consolidate and limit the number of access points for individual 
properties; new developments to obtain access from an adjacent road; encourage proper lot layout to 
minimize access points; and median restrictions. 

According to Chapter 12 (Subdivision Regulations) of the City of Sauk Rapid’s City Code, Section 12.06 
Subd.5.D, “Street jogs with center line off-sets shall not be less than one hundred and twenty-five feet 
(125’).” Additionally, Chapter 12.06 Subd. 5.E. states, “Local streets shall be so aligned or regulated that 
their use by through traffic will be discouraged.” 

City staff also indicated that the City Engineer also relies on industry guidance such as the Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). 

St. Cloud 

Access spacing guidelines are included in the St. Cloud Development Code, specifically as it relates to 
arterial and collector road classifications. According to 16.9.G., commercial or office developments are 
encouraged to use “a system of joint use driveways and cross-access easements” where feasible. 
Additionally, 19.2.E states “Street jogs with centerline offsets of less than one-hundred twenty-five (125) 
feet shall be avoided.” 

As found in the St. Cloud Land Development Code, minimum driveway separation requirements 
(excluding farm field approaches) are as follows:  

• Rural Residential (RR) District (Article 8): 300 feet on a collector or arterial street  
• Agriculture (Ag) District (Article 7): 400 feet on a collector street; 1,250 feet on an arterial street 

 
St. Joseph 

St. Joseph adopted a Transportation Plan in 2012 that includes access management guidelines in Section 
3.3. While Section 3.3 mentions using the St. Cloud APO access management standards (which have 
since been rescinded), additional standards were developed to guide the location and frequency of 
access locations (public or private roads or driveways) along with minor arterial and collector facilities 
(Table 5, 2012 Transportation Plan). The intent of these standards is that over time, as land is developed 

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 6 
 

  

 

or redeveloped, the access to the different classes of roadways will meet these guidelines. The following 
table summarizes these standards.  

Facility Type Area Type Primary Full Movement 
Intersections 

Conditional Secondary 
Intersection Private Access 

Minor Arterial 
Rural 1/2 mile 1/4 mile 

Restricted, but 
permitted 
subject to 
conditions 

Urban/Urbanizing 1/4 mile 1/8 mile Highly restricted 

Collector 

Rural 1/2 mile 1/4 mile 
Permitted 
subject to 
conditions 

Urban/Urbanizing 1/8 mile NA 

Urban Core 300-660 feet depending on block length 

Waite Park 

Waite Park’s access management guidelines can be found in Ordinance 58, Subdivision Regulations. As 
found in 58.5 Subd. 2.Q., the following access spacing is required when a proposed plat fronts or is 
adjected to an arterial or collector roadway. Additionally, Ordinance 58.5 Subd. 2.R. provides access 
spacing guidelines for local roadways. 

Street Type Distance (Urban Core) Distance (Urbanizing Area) 
Principal Arterial 330 feet (1/16 mile) 2,310 feet (7/16 mile) 
Minor Arterial 330 feet (1/16 mile) 1,980 feet (3/8 mile) 
Collector 330 feet (1/16 mile) 660 feet (1/8 mile) 
Local 330 feet (1/16 mile) 330 feet (1/16 mile) 

 
  

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 7 
 

  

 

III. MnDOT Access Management Guidelines and Policies 
MnDOT’s website defines access management as “the planning, 
design, and implementation of land use and transportation 
strategies in an effort to maintain a safe flow of traffic while 
accommodating the access needs of adjacent development.” 
Effective access management helps reduce congestion and crashes, 
preserve road capacity, improve travel times and mobility, and 
supports local economic development. MnDOT suggests ten ways to 
manage access:  

1. Think land use and transportation 
2. Identify and plan for growth areas 
3. Develop a complete hierarchy of roads 
4. Link access regulations to roadway function 
5. Avoid strip development – promote commercial nodes 
6. Connect local streets between subdivisions  
7. Design subdivisions with access onto local streets 
8. Practice good site planning principles 
9. Correct existing problems as opportunities arise 
10. Coordinate local development plans with MnDOT and 

country road agencies 
 
 

  

MnDOT’s visualization of access 
dos and don’ts 

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 8 
 

  

 

Access Category System 

MnDOT developed an access category system for the state trunk highway system which includes 
primary categories and subcategories. There are seven primary categories, based on the roadway’s 
functional classification and importance within the statewide system. There are five subcategories based 
on the highway facility type and existing and planned land use for the surrounding area. This system 
reflects the 20-year planning horizon, not existing conditions. 

 

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 9 
 

  

 

Access Types 

MnDOT established four access types that reflect the volume of traffic the access serves and whether 
the access is a public street intersection or a driveway. 

MnDOT Access Types  
*Trip – A one-way movement. 
*Typically, 100 trips per day would mean 50 vehicles entering an access and 50 vehicles exiting an access. 
 

Access Management Guidelines 

For each of the access categories above, MnDOT developed guidelines for the spacing of public street 
connections to the state trunk highway system. The recommended street spacing guidelines are broken 
into two categories and summarized in the following tables: 

• Interregional Corridor (IRC) system 

• Non-Interregional Corridor (IRC) system 

  

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 10 
 

  

 

MnDOT’s Recommended Street Spacing for IRCs 

 

  

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 11 
 

  

 

MnDOT’s Recommended Street Spacing for Non-IRCs 

More Information 

MnDOT’s Access Management website ( www.dot.state.mn.us/accessmanagement) includes resources 
and more information. The “Category Assignments” tab includes primary categories and subcategory 
assignments by MnDOT district. The “Resources” tab includes  the Access Management Manual, which 
includes further details regarding the State’s guidelines and policies relating to access management.  

IV. MnDOT Access Management Manual Update with Land Use Context 
Categories 
The Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) is in the process of creating a new access 
management manual that will replace the current guidelines. This manual is expected to be completed 
and released in early 2025.  

The new MnDOT Access Spacing Manual will define land use context categories. Context categories refer 
to the land use of a place and provide a higher level of detail than the land use categories in the existing 
access management manual, which has three land use categories of rural, urban/urbanizing, and urban 
core. There are nine context categories in the draft manual, ranging from Urban Core to Natural. These 
categories provide general descriptions of the typical characteristics of such environments and are not 

Attachment C2

http://www.dot.state.mn.us/accessmanagement


Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 12 
 

  

 

intended to cover every scenario. Each context category includes a high/medium/low ranking for its own 
expected demand for walking, biking, transit, autos, and trucks. 

When considering access spacing, the context category that most closely matches the surrounding land 
use should be used. MnDOT’s new access spacing guide, which is scheduled to be published in October 
2024, uses these nine context categories to help determine access spacing and placement. The nine 
context categories are defined below. Descriptions and expected traffic levels for each context category 
are sourced from the MnDOT Land Use Contexts: Types, Identification, and Use Technical Memo.  

Urban Core 

Urban Core land use is a compact, highly developed area of mixed uses, often stacked within buildings 
and structures. Uses include commercial/office, residential, institutional (e.g., hospital), public/civic, and 
some park and open space and greenway/trail, water access, and special event spaces.  

Access and driveways may be limited, and closely spaced; trucks may use truck access/loading areas or 
docks, or load on-street. Traffic of all types is expected to be medium to high volume. There is often a 
need to cross (sometimes mid-block) to priority destinations (e.g., bus or rail stop, workplace/business, 
restaurant, school, park). Roads (non-freeway) are typically a closely spaced and connected street grid; 
there may also be some shared-use paths. 

Urban Commercial 

Urban Commercial land use is a medium to large size, highly developed residential area with local shops 
and parks. Uses in an Urban Commercial area include single- and multi-family residential, commercial, 
institutional, and parks, open spaces, and trails.  

Access and driveway spacing may vary and be closely spaced; truck access and parking may be 
constrained. Pedestrian, bicycle, bus, and auto traffic is typically medium to high volume, with less 
truck/freight use. There is often a need to cross to priority destinations (e.g., small grocery, bus stop, 
school, park, restaurant, home). Roads (non-freeway) are typically a closely connected street grid; there 
may also be some shared-use paths. 

Urban Residential 

Urban Residential land use is a medium to large size, highly developed residential area that includes 
local shops and parks. Generally, uses include single- and multi-family residential, some local 
commercial and institutional areas, and parks, open space, and trails.  

Access and driveway spacing may vary and be closely spaced; truck access and parking may be 
constrained. Pedestrian, bicycle, bus, and auto traffic is typically medium to high volume, with less 
truck/freight use. There is often a need to cross to priority destinations (e.g., small grocery, bus stop, 
school, park, restaurant, home). Roads (non-freeway) are typically a closely connected street grid; there 
may also be some shared-use paths. 

Suburban Commercial 

Suburban Commercial land use is a medium to large size, moderately developed area of shops, 
restaurants, entertainment, office/work, and other activities, typically with medium to large areas of 
parking lots.  

Access and driveways may be limited, and moderately spaced on main/busier roads. Auto and truck 
traffic is typically medium to high volume, with some bus, and varied non-motorized use with a need to 

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 13 
 

  

 

cross mid-block to priority destinations (e.g. grocery, bus stop, home, park, school, and restaurant). 
Main roads typically connect to medium-spaced streets that form a grid, or shared-use paths. 

Suburban Residential 

Suburban Residential land use is a medium to large size, lightly to moderately developed residential 
area, mostly of single-family with some multi-family housing, and occasional neighborhood parks and 
trails, and lakes and woodlands. 

Access and driveways from main roads are typically limited and moderately spaced. Auto, pedestrian, 
bicycle, bus, and truck traffic are typically low to medium on internal roads and higher on main roads. 
People use often widely spaced shared-use paths sometimes with grade-separations and roads with 
occasional sidewalks to access nearby parks, trails, greenways, and lakes, and bus stops on main roads. 

Industrial—Warehouse—Port   

An Industrial – Warehouse – Port land use is typically a medium to large size, limited, and specific-use 
developed area. Uses include industrial/manufacturing, warehouse/shipping, commercial, and ports. 

Truck access/sized driveways are prominent, direct access may be limited, moderately spaced, and 
controlled (e.g., by fences/gates). Large truck, and auto traffic is expected; non-motorized use may be 
low, with a need to cross at (sometimes widely spaced) bus stop and site entrances, intersections, and 
to access shared-use paths. Main roads typically connect to a medium to widely spaced grid-like internal 
road system. 

Rural Crossroad 

Rural Crossroad land use is a small, lightly developed area at the crossing or intersection of two rural 
roads, typically in an unincorporated or very small community. Uses include residential, commercial, 
industrial, institutional, agriculture, public/civic, park, trail, and airstrip. 

Access and driveways may be closely to moderately spaced. Auto and truck traffic is typically low to 
medium volume, with higher truck use in freight corridors. Non-motorized especially pedestrian)use 
may be medium, with a need to cross at or near/priority destinations (e.g., grocery, home, park, school, 
restaurant, and maybe bus stop). Slow-moving horse-and-buggy, ATV-snowmobile, and freight-rail, 
buses, and trails may be expected. Main roads are typically connected to varied, sometimes sparsely 
spaced streets 

Rural 

Rural land use is a medium to large size, occasionally or sparsely settled area of farms and scattered 
forests. Uses include agriculture, forestry, resource conservation, mining, park, trail, and public/civic. 

Access and driveways may be limited and moderately spaced, with some field access. Auto, truck, and 
farm traffic is typically low to medium volume; bicycle and bus traffic may be low, with people walking 
and bicycling and crossing at or near priority destinations (e.g., grocery, bus stop, home, park, school, 
and restaurant) and at intersections. Slow-moving horse-and-buggy, and ATV-snowmobile users may be 
present. Main/busier roads are typically connected to a varied, sometimes widely spaced paved or 
gravel road grid, and shared-use paths. 

Natural 

Natural land use is a sparsely settled area in a natural condition, including places like wetlands, forests, 
meadows/prairies, lakes, rivers, scenic areas, steep slopes, wilderness, and some historic areas. Uses 

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 14 
 

  

 

include resource preservation/conservation, forestry, park, trail, scenic/tourist, resort, water access, and 
mining. 

Access and driveways may be limited and moderate to widely spaced. Traffic is typically low to medium 
volume, with more bicycling and walking on scenic routes and crossing at developed/service areas, and 
some trucks hauling logs/gravel, buses, recreational vehicles, and snowmobiles-ATVs. Main and busier 
roads are often connected to varied, sometimes widely spaced paved or gravel roads or shared-use 
paths. 

The following table summarizes access by context category and transportation mode. 

  
 
Once finalized and published, the updated MnDOT access spacing guidance will be more comprehensive 
and provided updated direction for access considerations related to land use context. Once the updated 
Access Management Manual is complete, this will be a primary guiding resource for regional 
transportation planning decision-making.  

V. Transportation Research Board’s Access Management Manual: 
Components of Access Location and Spacing 
The Transportation Research Board (TRB) is part of the National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and 
Medicine. Its mission is to provide leadership in transportation improvements and innovation through 
trusted, timely, impartial, and evidence-based information exchange, research, and advice regarding 
transportation.   

The TRB published the Access Management Manual as a comprehensive manual created that provides a 
wide variety of information to practitioners, including: 

• Access management techniques 

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 15 
 

  

 

• Developing and administering access management programs 
• Issues relevant to local, state, and regional practitioners 

The manual includes a variety of practical information for many parts of the access management 
process. The following is a selection of relevant examples from the manual. 

Operational Characteristics 

The main operational characteristics that influence the location and design of access points are: 
 
• Speed: Stopping distance, intersection sight distance, maneuvering distance (Changing lanes, etc.) 

all increase rapidly as speed increases, requiring more space between access points. 
• Volume and Traffic Flow: Urban areas generally see higher traffic volumes than on comparable 

roads in rural areas, and rural traffic is generally more consistent in terms of traffic flow. Urban 
areas have larger peaks in traffic volumes, which slows down traffic. Traffic signals also affect traffic 
flow, leading to platoons of vehicles traveling together with smaller volumes of sparsely distributed 
vehicles between platoons.  

 
Sight Distance 

Adequate sight distance is a critical part of locating access points and ensures that drivers can cross or 
enter the road safely. There are three main sight distance types: 
 
• Stopping Sight Distance: The sight distance required for a driver to perceive and react to a 

discernable hazard and then brake to a stop before reaching the hazard. 
• Intersection Sight Distance: The sight distance required for drivers to safely make a left or right turn 

from an access connection or to cross a roadway or for a driver to safely make a left turn from a 
roadway into an access connection. 

• Decision Sight Distance: The distance required by a driver to ascertain and safely respond to an 
unexpected, difficult, or unfamiliar situation. Decision sight distance addresses the need to provide 
drivers, especially unfamiliar drivers, with enough distance to safely turn into the desired location 
and is an integral part of the access location and design of large traffic generators. A common 
approach to providing decision sight distance is with advanced signage. 

 
Perception – Reaction Time 

Perception reaction time is the amount of time between when a driver sees a roadway hazard and is 
able to make a corresponding reaction in their vehicle. Perception-reaction times are quicker for drivers 
who are alert and familiar with their surroundings and traffic conditions. Generally, urban and suburban 
traffic conditions result in drivers having a higher level of alertness when compared to rural highways. 
This is shown in the often-used reaction times for urban/suburban compared to rural situations: 
 
• Urban/Suburban: 1.5 seconds perception-reaction time 
• Rural: 2.5 seconds perception-reaction time   
  

Attachment C2



Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 16 
 

  

 

VI. Access Spacing Consideration 
Access spacing guidelines help to define the appropriate distance between access points onto a road, 
including primary intersections, secondary intersections, and driveways. Ensuring that access points are 
spaced optimally enhances both safety and mobility for all road users.  

In addition to the MnDOT Access Management Manual, agencies can consider best practices when 
investigating access spacing and access point placement. The following is a non-comprehensive list.  

• Determination of intersection spacing based on functional classification, future functional 
classification, land use, and future land use 

o Consideration of land use context in understanding and applying access guidance 
standards or requirements 

• Consideration within the development review process of detailed aspects such as: 
o Balancing safety with property access. Changes of use reviewed for reasonably 

convenient and suitable access 
o Support of street connectivity 
o Consideration of access control consolidation or purchase on major highways 
o Limiting and/or guiding the number of driveways, location, and treatment based on 

technical factors such as: 
 Sight distance 
 Spacing between driveways 
 Access within the functional area of an intersection 
 Offset driveways 
 Interim accesses 
 Turn lane warrants 

• Special consideration and limitation of intersections and driveway spacing near interchange 
ramps 

• Incorporation of access management improvements related to safety including: 
o Impacts to vulnerable users (bicyclists, pedestrians, transit users) 
o Mitigation for negative impacts 
o Livability factors 

VII. Summary 
There is a strong correlation between access management, travel delay, and travel safety. Good access 
management allows for safer travel at higher speeds. For example, a TRB study1 estimates that doubling 
access on a corridor from 10 to 20 access points per mile increases accident rates by 40%. Similarly, a 
Colorado demonstration project revealed that half-mile signal spacing and raised medians on a five-mile 
roadway segment reduced total hours of vehicle travel by 42% and total hours of delay by 59% as 
compared to quarter-mile spacing.2 
 
Generally speaking, the purpose of arterial corridors is to provide facilities for longer trips, at higher 
speeds, for higher volumes of traffic. Therefore, appropriately limiting access points is an important 
component of protecting the utility and value of the public investment made into these corridors. 

 
1 “Access Spacing and Traffic Safety”, by Vassilios Papayannoulis, Jerome S. Gluck, and Kathleen Feeney 
(https://onlinepubs.trb.org/onlinepubs/circulars/ec019/Ec019_c2.pdf)  
2 “Final Report of the Colorado Access Control Demonstration Projects”, Colorado Department of Highways, 1985  

Attachment C2

https://onlinepubs.trb.org/onlinepubs/circulars/ec019/Ec019_c2.pdf


Date: August 14, 2024 
Page: 17 
 

  

 

 
A comparison of the inventory of current access management practices presented in this memo reveals 
– in general – a lot of consistency across the jurisdictions of the APO.  However, good access 
management for specific corridors must also acknowledge that each development and access decision 
exists within unique context that require engineering and planning judgement for decision-making. 
 
This memorandum summarizes the access management guidelines in place for member agencies of the 
St. Cloud APO and provides an overview of MnDOT guidance. All member agencies have guidance 
specific to their roadway authority and development and land use authority identified in their 
transportation plans, ordinances, or other documents. Access management guidelines for member 
agencies vary depending on specific agency land use and policy needs. A majority of agency guidance 
ties access spacing to land use development type and urban or rural development context.  
 
The information in this memo is a reference and is intended to inform regional transportation system 
planning as well as be used as a tool for local agencies in furthering local access management guidance.  
 

Attachment C2



TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

Date: November 13, 2024 

To: St. Cloud Area Planning Organization Technical Advisory Committee 

From: Bolton & Menk Future Functional Class Arterial and Collector Study Team 

Subject: Task 4.2 ROW Preservation Agency Overview and Regional Guidance 

I. Overview
This memo summarizes the existing conditions regarding right-of-way (ROW) preservation guidelines 
and policies by St. Cloud APO member agencies including the Minnesota Department of Transportation 
(MnDOT), three counties, and five cities. These ROW preservation guidelines allow planners to dedicate 
and preserve land to serve transportation infrastructure needs in response to growth or land use 
changes.  

Right-of-way preservation needs vary depending on the roadway typical section and land use context in 
an urban or rural setting. Generally, right-of-way preservation needs increase with the number of travel 
lanes, and presence of center median. Due to the space required for proper water conveyance and 
storage in rural ditches, rural sections require more right-of-way than urban sections. Functional 
classification may influence ROW needs as more space may be required on higher classification 
roadways, largely due to contributing factors such as travel speeds, sightlines, traffic volumes, and 
access spacing. 

II. Member Agency ROW Preservation Guidelines and Policies
Staff reviewed relevant land use plans, zoning, and transportation-related documents for the St. Cloud 
APO, Benton, Sherburne, and Stearns counties, the cities of Sartell, Sauk Rapids, St. Cloud, St. Joseph, 
and Waite Park. The following details ROW preservation for each St. Cloud APO member agency. 

St. Cloud APO 

The St. Cloud APO currently does not have specific ROW preservation guidelines or policies that direct 
local agencies. The 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan, however, includes typical roadway sections 
which illustrate associated right of way needed for each type of roadway facility.  

Benton County 

Benton County adopted “Highway Department Access and Right of Way Width Guidelines” in 2009. 
Section III.1. indicates that the width of ROW dedication will be based on “functional classification of the 
adjacent county roadway and the scope/nature of the necessary improvements due to the development 
itself.” The following table summarizes required ROW widths based on functional classification. 

Attachment C3



Date: November 13, 2024 
Page: 2 
 

  

 

 

 Urban Roadways Rural Roadways 
Local Roads (100 

ADT, including 
subdivision traffic) 

Urban 
Roadways in 

Rural Town Sites 

 Urban 
Arterials Collectors Principal 

Arterials 

Minor 
Arterials (and 

below) 
 Major/Minor 

Collector 

ROW 
Exaction 

from 
Centerline 

60 feet 50 feet 75 feet 60 feet 50 feet 50 feet* 

*Where existing encroachments make the 50 foot requirement impractical, a minimum ROW width of 40 feet may be approved. 

 

Sherburne County 

Sherburne County adopted a Transportation Plan in 2019.  Chapter 7 (Implementation Plan) includes the 
following ROW preservation guidelines. 

Functional Class Minimum ROW Widths* Facility Type 

Principal Arterial 
120 feet 4-lane divided 
150 feet 5-6 lane divided 

Minor Arterial 

100 feet 4-lane undivided 
120 feet 4-lane divided urban 
150 feet 4-land divided rural 
100 feet 3-lane urban 
100 feet 2-lane rural 

Collector 
100 feet 3-lane urban 
100 feet 2-lane rural 

*All ROW widths assume no parking on roadway; for separated bike/pedestrian facilities adjacent to roadways, add 10-15 feet 
to ROW widths. 

Stearns County 

The Stearns County 2040 Transportation Plan includes ROW preservation guidelines in Chapter 6 
(Implementation Plan).  

Functional Class Minimum ROW Widths* Facility Type 

Principal Arterial 
120 feet 2-lane rural 
150 feet 4-lane urban 
300 feet 4-lane rural 

Minor Arterial 

100 feet 2-lane urban 
100 feet 2-lane rural 
100 feet 3-lane urban 
150 feet 4-lane urban 
220 feet 4-lane rural 

Collector (Major or Minor) 
80 feet 2-lane urban 

100 feet 2-lane rural 
100 feet 3-lane urban 

*All ROW widths assume no parking on roadway. All ROW widths can accommodate adjacent trail facilities on both sides of the 
roadway. 

Sartell 

Attachment C3



Date: November 13, 2024 
Page: 3 
 

  

 

ROW preservation guidelines can be found in Title 11 (Subdivision Regulations), Chapter 5 (Design 
Standards) of the City Code. The following table summarizes the minimum standards from 11.5.2.J.  

Street Type 
Minimum 

ROW/Easement 
Width 

Minimum 
Pavement Width Maximum Grade Minimum Strength 

Minor Arterial 100 feet 44 feet 4% 9 tons 
Collector 80 feet 38 feet 6% 9 tons 
Local 66 feet 36 feet 6% 7 tons 
Frontage 66 feet 36 feet 6% 9 tons 
Trail 12 feet 8 feet ADA Specs N/A 
Sidewalk 12 feet 6 feet ADA Specs N/A 
Alley Residential 20 feet 15 feet 6% 7 tons 
Alley Commercial 24 feet 16 feet 6% 9 tons 

The City of Sartell also adopted a Complete Streets Policy in 2018. The implementation section of the 
Complete Streets Policy notes that greater attention will be paid to projects particularly in the Town 
Square area and arterial roadways. 

Sauk Rapids 

The City of Sauk Rapids adopted a Transportation Plan in 2011. Section 3.5 identifies basic approaches 
for ROW preservation such as land acquisition, landowner agreements, land use regulations, and access 
management. Chapter 12 (Section 12.06 Subd. 5.B. of the Subdivision Regulations) of the Sauk Rapids 
City Code also details minimum ROW preservation design standards. 

Street Type ROW Width Centerline Tangent Reverse Curve Centerline Radius 

Principle Arterial * * * 
Minor Arterial * * * 
Collector 80 feet 100 feet 375 feet 
Local 60 feet 50 feet 200 feet 
Access/Service 36 feet 50 feet 75 feet 
Alley (Commercial & Industrial Only) 24 feet 50 feet 75 feet 
Cul-de-sac 100 feet 

diameter 
  

*Special design - by City Engineer 

In addition to the above design standards, Section 12.06 Subd. 8 of the Subdivision Regulations includes 
the following requirements for bicycle routes or lanes and sidewalks when improvements are being 
made along certain roadways. 

 Urban Collectors and Urban 
Arterials 

Rural Collectors and 
Rural Arterials Local Streets 

Bicycle 
Routes/Lanes 

5 feet, on both sides 5 feet, on both sides Consideration given, 
especially for missing links 

Sidewalks/Trails 5 feet sidewalk and 6 feet 
boulevard (landscaped), on 

both sides 

5 feet or 8-12 feet trails Consideration given, 
especially for missing links* 

*Sidewalks on interior streets of new subdivisions shall be installed on at least one side of permanently constructed roads, 
except cul-de-sac streets less than 500 feet in length. 

St. Cloud 

Attachment C3



Date: November 13, 2024 
Page: 4 
 

  

 

St. Cloud’s Land Development Code, Article 19.2.B. details ROW preservation guidelines as follows.  

Road Type Minimum Width 
Rural Principal Arterial 150 feet 
Urban Principal Arterial 120 feet 
Rural Minor Arterial 120 feet 
Urban Minor Arterial and/or Rural Collector 100 feet 
Urban Collector 80 feet 
Local Non-Residential 66 feet 
Cul-De-Sac or Local Residential 60 feet 
Alleys; Residential 16 feet 
Alleys; Non-Residential 24 feet 
Walkway 10 feet 
Pedestrian/Bicycle Trail 20 feet 

Throughout the St. Cloud Comprehensive Plan, right-of-way improvement recommendations are made 
for specific small areas and corridors. Further, St. Cloud adopted a Complete Streets Policy in 2011. 

St. Joseph 

The City of St. Joseph adopted a Transportation Plan Update in 2012. Section 3.4 (Design Guide) details 
ROW preservation guidelines as follows.  

Functional Class Minimum ROW Widths* Facility Type 
Minor Arterials 80-150 feet Up to 4-lane (divided), based on projected ADT 
Major Collectors 80-100 feet Up to 4 lanes (undivided), based on projected ADT 
Minor Collectors 66-80 feet 2-lane (undivided) with sidewalk/trail 

 
Section 3.4 in the 2012 Transportation Plan includes diagrams that illustrate sample cross-sections for 
various Rural and Urban facility types. 
 
Section 5.1 of the 2012 Transportation Plan further details non-motorized facilities as follows:  

• Sidewalks: 4-6 feet 
• Bicycle Lanes (roadway or shoulder): 3-5 feet 
• Trails (shared, bicycle/pedestrian facilities): 8-12 feet 

 
Waite Park 

The City of Waite Park adopted a Transportation Plan in 2007. Section 7 (Design Guide) of the plan 
provides ROW preservation guidance. 
 

Functional Class Minimum ROW Widths* Facility Type 

Minor Arterials 80-150 feet Up to 4-lane (divided) with sidewalk/trail on both sides of 
the road, based on projected ADT 

Collectors 80-100 feet Up to 4 lanes (undivided) with a trail, based on projected 
ADT 

Minor Collectors 66-80 feet 2-lane (undivided) with sidewalk/trail 
 

The diagrams associated with Section 7.0 in the 2007 Transportation Plan detail sample cross-sections 
for various Rural and Urban facility types. 

Attachment C3



Date: November 13, 2024 
Page: 5 
 

  

 

The Waite Park Ordinance 58 (Subdivision Regulations) further details ROW preservation guidelines in 
Section 58.5 Subd. 2.K. 

Street Type 
Minimum 

ROW/Easement 
Width 

Minimum 
Pavement Width Maximum Grade Minimum Strength 

Minor Arterial 100 feet 44 feet 4% 9 tons 
Collector 80 feet 38 feet 6% 9 tons 
Local 66 feet 36 feet 6% 7 tons 
Frontage 66 feet 36 feet 6% 9 tons 
Trail 12 feet 8 feet ADA Specs N/A 
Sidewalk 12 feet 6 feet ADA Specs N/A 
Alley Residential 20 feet 15 feet 6% 7 tons 
Alley Commercial 24 feet 16 feet 6% 9 tons 

 

Section 6.1 of the Transportation Plan also includes ROW preservations guidelines for pedestrian and 
bike trail facilities as follows:  

• Sidewalks: 3-6 feet 
• Trails (shared, bicycle/pedestrian facilities): 8-12 feet 
• Bicycle Lanes (roadway or shoulder): 3-5 feet 

III. Agency Summary 
This memorandum summarizes the ROW preservation guidelines in place for member agencies of the St. 
Cloud APO. All three counties and five cities that are part of this study area have guidelines, policies, or 
ordinances in their transportation plans or other planning and policy documents. All jurisdictions have 
unique requirements. Most ROW guidance is based on whether a planned facility is urban (curb and 
gutter) or rural (ditches), as this greatly impacts the needed right of way width. This inventory of local 
guidance and policy serves as a foundation to understand potential regional and inter-agency 
coordination for ROW preservation of regional facilities.  

IV. Regional Perspective for Right-of-Way Preservation Guidance 
Table 1: Right of Way Preservation Guidance by Facility Type with Feature Assumptions incorporates 
regional best-practice right of way guidance. This table identifies recommended average right-of-way 
dimensions that were developed by assuming the desirable typical section element widths per industry 
standards (12’ travel lanes, 8’ shoulders, 10’ boulevards, etc.). The sum of these dimensions resulted in 
the typical section widths shown in the table below. These widths may be increased or decreased 
depending on design preferences and tolerances within design but should be considered a planning level 
starting point in estimating and planning for right-of-way needs. A breakdown of assumptions by 
element is provided in order to represent an additive approach to apply based on facility features. 
Specific dimensions of roadway elements can greatly vary depending on context and needs. 

The following table includes right of way guidance based on potential facility type for ROW planning and 
preservation purposes. This guidance should be considered along with planning and engineering 
development of typical sections. This illustrative guidance is directed at regional roadway facilities as 
well as federally functionally classified roadways and is dependent upon member agency and roadway 
authority adopted guidance, policies, and ordinances when implementing right-of-way preservation. 

Attachment C3



Date: November 13, 2024 
Page: 6 
 

  

 

Roadway features such as shoulder width, median width, and boulevard width may be adjusted 
depending on planned roadway speed and volume which is typically represented by the planned future 
functional classification and is also dependent on community land use and development context. 
Adjusted right of way widths would typically only be considered for roadways planned as Collectors. 
Table 2: Right of Way Preservation Guidance Context Adjustments illustrates adjustments that may be 
considered as part of functional classification and land use context consideration.  

The illustration below shows a 10-foot utility buffer option and up to a 20-foot trail right-of-way option 
depending on the typical section type. Additional width considerations are recommended as part of the 
planning and engineering project design process to provide flexibility in three-dimensional design to 
minimize grading impacts outside of the right-of-way, and accommodate additional features such as 
screening, landscaping, sound barriers, etc. Additional width may also be required at intersections to 
accommodate turn lanes or along horizontal curvature. 

 
 

  

Utility 
buffer 8-

12'

Trail
10-20'

Boulevard
5-10' 

(Urban) 
30' (Rural)

Shoulder
4-10'

Travel 
Lanes 
12-14'

Median
9' (1/2)

ROW 
Needed 
for 1/2 
Road

Attachment C3



 
 
 
 

     

 

 

 

 

Table 1: Right of Way Preservation Guidance by Facility Type with Feature Assumptions

Typical Section Type Typical Functional Classification
Standard Preferred 

Right of Way Width by 
Facility Type (no trails)

Total Utility 
Zone 

Assumption

Total Lane 
Width 

Assumption

Total Shoulder 
Width 

Assumption

Median 
Assumption

Blvds/
Rural Ditch 
Assumption

Trail per Side (not 
included in 

standard width)

2-Lane Undivided, Rural Minor Collector, Major Collector, Minor Arterial 110 8 24 18 0 60 20
2-Lane Undivided, Urban Minor Collector, Major Collector, Minor Arterial 90 24 24 22 0 20 10
2-Lane Divided, Rural Major Collector, Minor Arterial 130 8 28 16 18 60 20
2-Lane Divided, Urban Major Collector, Minor Arterial 110 24 28 20 18 20 10
3-Lane, Rural Minor Collector, Major Collector, Minor Arterial 120 6 38 16 0 60 20
3-Lane, Urban Minor Collector, Major Collector, Minor Arterial 100 20 40 20 0 20 10
4-Lane Divided, Rural Minor Arterial, Principal Arterial 180 8 48 24 40 60 20
4-Lane Divided, Urban Minor Arterial, Principal Arterial 130 20 52 20 18 20 10
4-Lane Undivided, Rural Minor Arterial, Principal Arterial 140 8 48 24 0 60 20
4-Lane Undivided, Urban Minor Arterial, Principal Arterial 110 20 52 18 0 20 10

Table 2: Right of Way Preservation Guidance Context Adjustments

Typical Section Type Typical Functional Classification
Standard Preferred Right 
of Way Width by Facility 

Type (no trails)

Context Adusted Illustrative 
Right of Way Width

Land Use Context and Functional Class 
Notes on Illustrative Adjustments

2-Lane Undivided, Rural Minor Collector, Major Collector, Minor Arterial 
110 100 Decrease shoulder width to 8 ft total

2-Lane Undivided, Urban Minor Collector, Major Collector, Minor Arterial 
90 70

Decrease shoulder width to 12 ft total, decrease 
blvd. width to 10 ft total

2-Lane Divided, Rural Major Collector, Minor Arterial 130 N/A No recommended adjustments
2-Lane Divided, Urban Major Collector, Minor Arterial 110 100 Decrease blvd. width to 10 ft total

3-Lane, Rural Minor Collector, Major Collector, Minor Arterial 
120 110

Decrease shoulder width to 8 ft total, decrease 
total lane width to 36 ft

3-Lane, Urban Minor Collector, Major Collector, Minor Arterial 
100 80

Decrease shoulder width to 10 ft total, decrease 
blvd. width to 10 ft total

4-Lane Divided, Rural Minor Arterial, Principal Arterial 180 170 Decrease shoulder width to 14 ft total 

4-Lane Divided, Urban Minor Arterial, Principal Arterial 
130 110

Decrease shoulder width to 10 ft total, decrease 
blvd. width to 10 ft total

4-Lane Undivided, Rural Minor Arterial, Principal Arterial 140 130 Decrease shoulder width to 14 ft total 

4-Lane Undivided, Urban Minor Arterial, Principal Arterial 
110 90

Decrease shoulder width to 8 ft total, decrease 
blvd. width to 10 ft total

Attachment C3



Date: November 14, 2024 
Page: 1 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

Date: November 14, 2024 

To: St. Cloud Area Planning Organization Technical Advisory Committee 

From: Bolton & Menk Future Regional Arterials and Collectors Study Team 

Subject: Task 5 – Roadway Segment Existing Functional Classification Screening Documentation 

I. Introduction
This memorandum provides an overview of the methodology used to evaluate the existing functional 
classification and potential future functional classification of roadway segments within the APO’s 
planning area. This evaluation was used to identify roadway segments that have physical or operating 
characteristics outside of typical ranges for the functional classification they are currently assigned, in 
order to identify segments to be investigated further in the context analysis and evaluation phase.   

II. Methodology Overview
For all criteria considered, a typical range for each functional classification was identified. In some cases, 
different typical ranges were identified for different area types (urban vs. rural, etc.). In general, range 
values were based on guidance from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) or from the 
Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT). All FHWA guidance is sourced from the document 
Highway Functional Classification Concepts, Criteria and Procedures, 2023 Edition. The sections below 
describe each criterion and provide the value ranges and sources used for each. 

Each segment was evaluated against each criterion and assigned a rating. 

• The segment was assigned a rating of “Within” if the value for the segment was found to be
within the typical range for segments with the segment’s current or proposed functional
classification and area type.

• The segment was assigned a rating of “Above” if the segment’s value suggested a functional
classification above its current or proposed rating (“Above” meaning more regional/mobility-
focused in nature, i.e. a Principal Arterial – Interstate is the “highest” functional classification in
this system).

• Segments were assigned a rating of “Below” the segment’s value suggested a functional
classification lower than its current or proposed rating (“Below’ meaning more local/access-
focused in nature, i.e. a Local roadway is the “lowest” functional classification in this system).

If a segment received a rating of either Above or Below, it was assigned a flag. The total number of flags 
each segment received was then calculated based upon these ratings, which were multiplied by each 
ratings respective weight.  

Attachment C4



Date: November 14, 2024 
Page: 2 
 

    

 

III. Criteria Ranges 
Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) 
This criterion compares a roadway’s daily traffic volume to ranges identified by FHWA. Existing AADTs 
were taken from MnDOT’s Online Traffic Volume Mapping tool. Due to the importance of this criterion, 
results were given double weighting (2 points). 

Rural Areas: 

• Principal Arterial – Other: 2,000-8,500 
vehicles per day (vpd) 

• Minor Arterial: 1,500-8,500 vpd 

• Major Collector: 300-2,600 vpd 

• Minor Collector: 150-1,100 vpd 

Urban Areas: 

• Principal Arterial – Other: 7,000-27,000 
vpd 

• Minor Arterial: 3,000-14,000 vpd 

• Major Collector: 1,100-6,300 vpd 

• Minor Collector: 1,100-6,300 vpd 

 
Speed Limit 
Typical speed limit ranges for each functional classification were also taken from FHWA guidance. The 
ranges used in this evaluation are as follows: 

• Principal Arterial – Other: 30-55 mph 

• Minor Arterial: 25-55 mph 

• Major Collector: 25-55 mph 

• Minor Collector: 25-35 mph 

 

Median Condition 
Median condition was also taken from FHWA guidance. This criterion was given half weight (0.5 points). 
The presence or absence of a median was used in the evaluation as follows: 

• Principal Arterial – Other: Either Divided or Undivided (All segments assigned “Within”) 

• All Others: Undivided (All Divided Segments assigned “Above”) 

 

Trip Length 
StreetLight Data was used to collect information about the types of trips being made on each roadway. 
For this metric, average trip length was collected for an average day (including all days of the year). 
Cutoff values were based off of FHWA guidance. Due to the importance of this criterion, results were 
given double weighting (2 points). 

• Principal Arterial – Other: 15-35 miles 

• Minor Arterial: 7-25 miles 

• Major Collector: 5-10 miles 

• Minor Collector: Less than 7 miles (no segments assigned “Below”) 

 

Attachment C4



Date: November 14, 2024 
Page: 3 
 

    

 

Access Spacing 
MnDOT gives access spacing guidance in two pieces: primary intersection spacing and secondary 
intersection spacing. Tables 1 and 2 below show MnDOT’s recommended value for each, and the cutoff 
values used in this evaluation. Each of these was given half the weight of other metrics (i.e., 0.5 points 
was assigned to primary intersection spacing, 0.5 points was assigned to secondary intersection spacing 
for a total of up to 1 point assigned for overall access spacing). 

Table 1: Primary Intersection Recommended Spacing and Cutoff Values 

Area Type Functional Classification MnDOT Recommended 
(access per mile) 

Cutoff Range 
(access per mile) 

Rural 

Principal Arterials, Major 
Arterial 1 0.5-2.0 

Minor Arterials, Major 
Collectors, and Minor Collectors 2 1.5-2.5 

Urban/Urbanizing 

Principal Arterials, Major 
Arterial 2 1.5-2.5 

Minor Arterials, Major 
Collectors, and Minor Collectors 8 6-10 

Urban Core 

Principal Arterials, Major 
Arterial 8-16 6-16 

Minor Arterials, Major 
Collectors, and Minor Collectors 8-16 6-16 

 

Table 2: Secondary Intersection Recommended Spacing and Cutoff Values 

Area Type Functional Classification MnDOT Recommended 
(access per mile) 

Cutoff Range 
(access per mile) 

Rural 

Principal Arterials, Major 
Arterial 2 1.5-2.5 

Minor Arterials, Major 
Collectors, and Minor Collectors 4 3-5 

Urban/Urbanizing 

Principal Arterials, Major 
Arterial 4 3-5 

Minor Arterials, Major 
Collectors, and Minor Collectors 8 6-10 

Urban Core 

Principal Arterials, Major 
Arterial 8-16 6-16 

Minor Arterials, Major 
Collectors, and Minor Collectors 8-16 6-16 

 

  

Attachment C4



Date: November 14, 2024 
Page: 4 
 

    

 

Future AADT 
Future traffic volumes were considered as a marker for future change. The APO’s 2050 travel demand 
model was used to understand projected volume growth on existing segments. For existing segments, 
future volumes were estimated as (2050 scenario model volume – base year model volume) + Most 
Recent AADT from MnDOT. The same volume thresholds presented in the AADT section above were 
used to assign flag values. 

Growth Areas 
Roads that connect areas where significant growth is expected may experience a change in their 
operations or need future investment to maintain safe and efficient operations. The socioeconomic (SE) 
data used for the APO’s travel demand model was used to identify future growth areas. 

Due to the unique nature of this characteristic, flags were assigned to any area expected to have a 
density increase of more than 10 households per acre or 10 jobs per acre. This rating was denoted as a 
“flag.”  

IV. Existing Functional Classification Data Profile Segment Screening 
Table 3 shows the total number of flags for each segment, sorted from the highest number to the 
lowest. The table also shows whether the segments fall below, within, or above the typical range for 
each criterion, as well as the current functional classification of each segment.  In total, 34 segments 
compiled 3.5 or more total flags. These segments were studied in further detail to understand potential 
future functional classification needs. The following sections include more details about each category.  
 
Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) 
Most of the segments with 3.5 or more flags received two points from the AADT category. Of the 34 
segments identified for further review, as 31 were flagged for AADT outside of the typical range for their 
current and/or future functional classification based upon FHWA guidance – 18 segments were 
identified as above the typical range and 13 segments were identified below. Figure 1 illustrates the 
AADT Segment Rating Compared to FHWA Guidelines for all segments.  
 
Trip Length 
Half of the segments identified for future review were found to be outside of the typical range for trip 
length as outlined by FHWA guidance. These 17 segments were all found to be above the trip length 
range for their functional classification. It should be noted that Minor Collectors did not have a below 
category, due to the average range starting at 0. Figure 2 illustrates the Average Trip Length Segment 
Rating Compared to FHWA Guidelines for all segments. 
 
Speed Limit 
Fourteen out of the 34 identified segments experienced speed limits above the recommended range for 
the existing functional class. Of these 14 segments, 12 involved roadways currently classified as Minor 
Collectors. Figure 3 illustrates the Speed Limit Segment Rating Compared to FHWA Guidelines for all 
segments. 
 

Attachment C4



Date: November 14, 2024 
Page: 5 
 

    

 

Primary and Secondary Access Spacing 
In terms of access spacing, 32 out of the 34 flagged segments were identified to have primary access 
point spacing above the recommended range outlined by FHWA guidance. The remaining two segments 
were within guidance for primary access spacing.  
 
For secondary access spacing, 31 segments had spacing outside of the recommended range – 22 above 
the FHWA guidance and nine below guidance. Overall 29 segments were outside of the recommended 
range for both primary and secondary access spacing. Figure 4 illustrates the Primary Intersection 
Access Spacing Segment Rating Compared to FHWA Guidelines for all segments. Figure 5 shows the 
Secondary Intersection Access Spacing Segment Rating Compared to FHWA Guidelines for all segments. 
 
Median 
Eight segments from the subset were above the range, meaning a median was present on a non-
Principal Arterial. Figure 6 shows the Divided Roads Segment Rating Compared to FHWA Guidelines for 
all segments. 

V. Recommended Existing Functional Class Changes  
The screening process identified the total number of flags per segment in order to create a subset for 
further context analysis related to future functional classification needs. The same attributes and 
technical flag analysis, with the same weights, was used to understand changes to segment existing 
functional classifications. Instead of the total number of flags, the net number of flags was used to 
understand existing needs. Attribute flags above and below were summed to give a net understanding 
of the attributes in relationship to functional class guidance.  
 
During this analysis, no segments identified in the net analysis attained equal to or below a negative 3.5 
net flag score. As a result, no existing functional classification downgrades were considered as part of 
this analysis.  
 
Seventeen segments totaled a net flag value over 3 (greater or equal to 3.5). Based on analysis of these 
17 segments, the following recommendations are proposed: 

• For the two segments currently identified as a Principal Arterial – Other, no changes to existing 
functional classification are recommended due to these roadways meeting the highest level of 
functional classification (outside of Interstate).  

• For the four segments currently identified as Minor Arterials but flagged as possible 
considerations for Principal Arterial – Other, additional screening methods were utilized to 
determine the potential to adjust the functional classification. It should be noted that the 
changes from a Minor Arterial to a Principal Arterial – Other require thorough vetting and 
approval beyond this cursory analysis. Based upon additional context analysis, these segments 
did not pass initial screening because they do not connect to the existing Principal Arterial 
system. In addition, these segments tended to include attributes within the Minor Arterial and 
Principal Arterial range.  

• The remaining 11 segments advanced strictly on net flag analysis. This required further review 
and input from local agencies regarding system function and needs.  

 

Attachment C4



Date: November 14, 2024 
Page: 6 
 

    

 

For the 11 segments advanced based on the net flag analysis, the following changes to the existing 
functional classification system are recommended: 

• Upgrading the six identified Major Collectors to Minor Arterials. 
• Upgrading the five identified Minor Collectors to Major Collectors. 

 
In addition, one segment (an existing Major Collector) was upgraded to a Minor Arterial for 
connectivity/consistency. As a result, this brings the recommended upgrades from Major Collector to 
Minor Arterial to seven. 
 
These segments were reviewed with roadway authorities and are listed in Table 4. Segment S-93 was 
removed due to local system changes. Figure 7 shows the segments identified for existing functional 
classification change potential based on the screening analysis from this study.  
 
  

Attachment C4



Date: November 14, 2024 
Page: 7 
 

    

 

Table 4: Existing Functional Classification Changes  

 

UID Segment Name
Existing Functional 
Class Net Flags

Existing Functional Class 
Change Notes

S-15 County Road 7 From County Road 44 to I-94 Major Collector 5 Minor Arterial
S-157 County Road 4 From County Road 2 to County Road 133 / 6th Street S Major Collector 5 Minor Arterial

S-51 28th Avenue S From County Road 137 to Division Street Major Collector 5 Minor Arterial
Segment limits may need to be adjusted 
for Minor Arterial connectivity

S-106 Ridgewood Road From County Road 134 to County Road 4 Major Collector 4.5 Minor Arterial
S-107 Ridgewood Road From County Road 75 to County Road 134 Minor Collector 4 Major Collector
S-37 Granite View Road / 2nd Avenue S From 33rd Street S to 7th Street S Minor Collector 4 Major Collector

S-41 32nd Street SE / 27th Street SE From Highway 10 to 75th Avenue SE Minor Collector 4 Major Collector
Sherburne County identifies this 
segment as an existing Major Collector

S-45 County Road 138 From I-94 to 28th Avenue S Minor Collector 4 Major Collector
Adjust segment limits to CR 121 to 28th 
Ave S

S-72 2nd Avenue S From 2nd Street S to 3rd Street N Major Collector 3.5 Minor Arterial
S-99 Minnesota Street From County Road 2 to County Road 75 Minor Collector 3.5 Major Collector

S-91 County Road 134 From County Road 75 to Ridgewood Road Major Collector 3 Minor Arterial
Included for Minor Arterial System 
Connectivity

S-93 11th Avenue N From W Saint Germain Street to 2nd Street N Major Collector 4 Minor Arterial
Segment removed due to local 
connection change 

Attachment C4



Seg. 
ID Name

Current Functional 
Classification

AADT (two 
points)

Trip Length 
(two points)

Speed Limit 
(one point)

Primary Access 
Spacing (half point)

Secondary Access 
Spacing (half point)

Median (half 
point) Total Flags

S-15 County Road 7 From County Road 44 to I-94 Major Collector Above Above Within Above Above Above 5.5
S-125 10th Street NE From Mayhew Lake Road NE to Highway 23 Major Collector Below Above Within Above Above Within 5
S-157 County Road 4 From County Road 2 to County Road 133 / 6th Street S Major Collector Above Above Within Above Above Within 5
S-179 Little Rock Road NE From Highway 10 to 15th Avenue NE Major Collector Below Above Within Above Above Within 5
S-180 125th St NW / County Road 1 / Great River Road From 27th Street N to County Boundary Minor Arterial Below Above Within Above Above Within 5
S-28 40th Street S From County Road 74 to Cooper Avenue S Major Collector Below Above Within Above Above Within 5
S-51 28th Avenue S From County Road 137 to Division Street Major Collector Above Above Within Above Above Within 5
S-54 16th Street S From 9th Avenue S to 2nd Street S Major Collector Below Above Within Above Below Within 5
S-9 State Highway 23 From APO Boundary to I-94 Principal Arterial - Other Above Above Within Above Above Within 5
S-106 Ridgewood Road From County Road 134 to County Road 4 Major Collector Above Above Within Above Within Within 4.5
S-93 11th Avenue N From W Saint Germain Street to 2nd Street N Major Collector Above Above Within Above Below Within 5
S-150 Heritage Drive / 4th Avenue S From Heritage Drive to 2nd Street S Minor Collector Below Within Above Above Above Above 4.5
S-172 27th Street N From Pine Cone Road to Riverside Avenue N Major Collector Below Above Within Above Within Within 4.5
S-94 8th Avenue N / Courthouse Square From W Saint Germain Street to 7th Avenue N Major Collector Below Above Within Within Below Within 4.5
S-10 Broadway Street W From Highway 23 to 235th Steet Minor Collector Above Within Above Above Below Within 4
S-107 Ridgewood Road From County Road 75 to County Road 134 Minor Collector Above Within Above Above Above Within 4
S-177 30th Avenue N From County Road 4 to Main Street Minor Collector Below Within Above Above Above Within 4
S-29 County Road 6  From State Highway 23 to I-94 Minor Collector Below Within Above Above Above Within 4
S-30 County Road 6 From I-94 to County Road 74 Minor Collector Below Within Above Above Above Within 4
S-37 Granite View Road / 2nd Avenue S From 33rd Street S to 7th Street S Minor Collector Above Within Above Above Above Within 4
S-41 32nd Street SE / 27th Street SE From Highway 10 to 75th Avenue SE Minor Collector Above Within Above Above Above Within 4
S-45 County Road 138 From I-94 to 28th Avenue S Minor Collector Above Within Above Above Above Within 4
S-8 County Road 8  From Highway 23 to Broadway Street Minor Collector Below Within Above Above Below Within 4
S-81 10th Avenue SE From 12th Street SE to 2nd Street SE Minor Collector Below Within Above Above Above Within 4
S-1 State Highway 15 From APO Boundary to I-94 Principal Arterial - Other Within Above Above Above Above Within 4
S-133 Highway 95 NE From Highway 23 to 75th Avenue NE Minor Arterial Within Above Above Above Above Within 4
S-103 8th Street N From 54th Avenue N / 50th Avenue N to State Highway 15 Minor Arterial Above Within Within Above Above Above 3.5
S-128 9th Avenue N  From Northway Drive / 6th Avenue N to N Benton Drive Minor Arterial Above Within Within Above Above Above 3.5
S-130 County Road 120 From County Road 4 to State Highway 15 Minor Arterial Above Within Within Above Above Above 3.5
S-53 Clearwater Road / 9th Avenue S From 22nd Street S to 2nd Street S Minor Arterial Above Within Within Above Below Above 3.5
S-59 University Drive S From Cooper Avenue S to 15th Avenue Se Minor Arterial Above Within Within Above Below Above 3.5
S-72 2nd Avenue S From 2nd Street S to 3rd Street N Major Collector Above Above Within Within Below Within 4.5
S-99 Minnesota Street From County Road 2 to County Road 75 Minor Collector Above Within Above Above Within Within 3.5
S-83 Killian Boulevard SE From University Drive SE to 7th Street SE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Below Above 3.5
S-78 9th Avenue N / 10th Avenue S From 2nd Street S to Northway Drive / 6th Avenue N Minor Arterial Above Within Within Above Within Above 3
S-105 10th Avenue N / 54th Avenue N / County Road 134 From 3rd Street N to Pine Cone Road Minor Arterial Above Within Within Above Above Within 3
S-109 8th Avenue NE From Minnesota Street to County Road 75 Minor Collector Below Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-110 2nd Avenue NW From Minnesota Street to County Road 75 Minor Collector Above Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-112 Centennial Street From 33rd Avenue N to 9th Avenue N Minor Collector Above Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-119 15th Street N From 9th Avenue N to 6th Avenue N Minor Collector Above Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-137 1st Street S From benton Drive to Summit Ave S Minor Collector Below Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-142 Roberts Road From Pine Cone Road S to Heritage Drive Minor Collector Above Within Within Above Above Within 3
S-143 8th Street N From Benton Drive to 6th Avenue N Minor Collector Below Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-147 Mayhew Lake Road NE From Golden Spike Road NE to 15th Avenue NE Minor Arterial Above Within Within Above Above Within 3
S-151 4th Avenue N From 8th Street N to 11th Street N Minor Collector Below Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-164 2 1/2 Street / 2nd Street  From Pine Cone Road to 2nd Avenue Minor Collector Below Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-186 27th Avenue S / Roosevelt Road / W Saint Germain Street From Division Street to 1st Street SMinor Collector Below Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-200 Cypress Road / Rolling Ridge Road From Ridgewood Road to County Road 4 Minor Collector Below Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-63 29th Avenue N  From 2nd Street S to 3rd Street N Minor Collector Above Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-66 State Highway 15 From 2nd Street S to County Road 120 Principal Arterial - Other Above Within Within Above Above Within 3

SCAPO Future Regional Arterials and Collectors Study
Task 5 - Existing Functional Classification Documentation 1 of 4

Attachment C5



Seg. 
ID Name

Current Functional 
Classification

AADT (two 
points)

Trip Length 
(two points)

Speed Limit 
(one point)

Primary Access 
Spacing (half point)

Secondary Access 
Spacing (half point)

Median (half 
point) Total Flags

S-86 8th Avenue S From 2nd Street S to W Saint Germain Street Minor Collector Below Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-89 1st Street S From 8th Avenue S to 7th Avenue S Minor Collector Above Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-90 12th Avenue N From W Saint Germain Street to 2nd Street N Minor Collector Below Within Within Above Below Within 3
S-102 Highway 23 From Highway 10 to 75th Avenue NE Principal Arterial - Other Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-104 Highway 10  From 3rd Street NE to State Highway 15 Principal Arterial - Other Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-11 County Road 75  From I-94 to County Road 7 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-115 13th Street N  From 13th Street N / Northway Drive to 7th Avenue N Major Collector Within Above Within Above Below Within 3
S-117 E Saint Germain Street / 14th Ave NE From Highway 10 to Mayhew Lake Road NE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-12 Broadway Street W From 235th Street to State Highway 23 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-120 15th Street N From Northway Drive to 9th Avenue N Major Collector Within Above Within Above Below Within 3
S-124 35th Avenue NE From 2nd Street SE to 15th Street NE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-13 County Road 47  From State Highway 23 to State Highway 15 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-134 15th Street NE From Mayhew Lake Road NE to Highway 23 NE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-135 50th Avenue N From County Road 120 to Roberts Road / Heritage Drive Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-138 6th Avenue N  From 1st Street S to 11th Street N Major Collector Within Above Within Above Below Within 3
S-146 Heritage Drive From Pine Cone Road to Great River Road Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-148 Golden Spike Road NE From Mayhew Lake Road NE to APO Boundary Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-153 19th Avenue N  From County Road 4 to 2 1/2 Street N Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-16 County Road 136 From State Highway 15 to I-94 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-161 35th Street NE From Highway 10 to Mayhew Lake Road NE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-162 1st Avenue NE / N Benton Drive From 1st Street NE to Highway 10 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-17 County Road 115 From County Road 136 to County Road 7 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-170 Highway 10  From State Highway 15 to APO Boundary Principal Arterial - Other Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-171 60th Street NW From Highway 10 to Mayhew Lake Road NE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-173 County Road 3 From County Road 75 to County Road 4 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-174 County Road 4 From County Road 3 to County Road 2 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-175 15th Avenue NE From Hayhew Lake Road NE to APO Boundary Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-176 75th Street NW From Highway 10 to 15th Avenue NE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-178 County Road 3 From County Road 4 to County Road 17 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-18 Highway 10  From APO Boundary to 3rd Street NE Principal Arterial - Other Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-181 Main Street E / County Road 5 From Central Avenue to County Road 1 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-182 County Road 2 From County Road 4 to Main Street Minor Arterial Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-184 County Road 2 From Main Street to County Road 1 Minor Arterial Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-185 County Road 1  From 125th Street NW to 450th St/County Boundary Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-19 57th Street SE / 45th Avenue SE / 60th Street SE  From County Road 8 SE to 75th Avenue SEMajor Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-20 75th Avenue SE From APO Boundary to 17th Street SE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-201 County Road 17 From County Road 3 to 125th St NW Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-23 I-94 From County Road 75 / Roosevelt Road to State Highway 15 Principal Arterial - InterstateWithin Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-24 I-94 From State Highway 23 to State Highway 15 Principal Arterial - InterstateWithin Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-25 County Road 74 From State Highway 15 to 33rd Street S Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-26 State Highway 15 From I-94 to 2nd Street S Principal Arterial - Other Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-27 County Road 136  From I-94 to 22nd Street S Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-3 I-94 From APO Boundary to County Road 75 / Roosevelt Road Principal Arterial - InterstateWithin Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-31 42nd Street SE / 45th Avenue SE / 12th Street SE  From Highway 10 to Highway 10 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-38 I-94 From State Highway 23 to APO Boundary Principal Arterial - InterstateWithin Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-39 County Road 74 From 33rd Street S to 22nd Street S Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-4 Opportunity Drive / County Road 75 From APO Boundary to I-94 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-43 County Road 2  From 133rd Avenue to I-94 Minor Arterial Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-46 County Road 137 From County Road 6 to 28th Avenue S Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-49 County Road 137 / 7th Street S From County Road 137 / 28th Avenue S to 10th Avenue S Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3

SCAPO Future Regional Arterials and Collectors Study
Task 5 - Existing Functional Classification Documentation 2 of 4

Attachment C5



Seg. 
ID Name

Current Functional 
Classification

AADT (two 
points)

Trip Length 
(two points)

Speed Limit 
(one point)

Primary Access 
Spacing (half point)

Secondary Access 
Spacing (half point)

Median (half 
point) Total Flags

S-5 County Road 7  From 200th Street to County Road 44 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-52 Traverse Road From Cooper Avenue S to Roosevelt Road Major Collector Within Above Within Above Below Within 3
S-6 County Road 44 From County Road 7 to APO Boundary Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-61 W Saint Germain Street From W Saint Germain Street / 33rd Avenue S to 2nd Street S Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-7 County Road 8  From Grand Lake Road to Highway 23 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-79 2nd Street SE / 55th Avenue SE / 17th Street SE From Highway 23 E to 75th Avenue SE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-80 7th Avenue S / 6th Avenue N  From 2nd Street S to 9th Avenue N Major Collector Within Above Within Above Below Within 3
S-84 Wilson Avenue SE / 7th Street SE From 3rd Street SE to Lincoln Avenue SE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Below Within 3
S-91 County Road 134 From County Road 75 to Ridgewood Road Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-92 1st Street S From 7th Avenue S to 5th Avenue S Major Collector Within Above Within Above Below Within 3
S-95 County Road 2 From I-94 to County Road 75 Minor Arterial Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-97 County Road 51 From APO Boundary to County Road 2 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Above Within 3
S-114 Westwood Parkway APO Boundary to Ridgewood Road Minor Collector Below Within Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-168 12th Street From Pine Cone Road to Riverside Avenue N Minor Collector Below Within Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-113 County Road 2 From County Road 75 to County Road 4 Minor Arterial Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-123 County Road 134 From Pine Cone Road to County Road 120 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-126 5th Street S / 10th Street NE From Summit Avenue S to Mayhew Lake Road NE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-144 18th Street N / Summit Avenue N From State Highway 15 to 2nd Street N Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-149 1st Avenue N / 11th Street N / Stearns Drive From Benton Drive to 2nd Street N Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-156 4th Avenue N From 11th Street N to 35th Street NE Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-165 2 1/2 Street N From 19th Avenue to Pine Cone Road Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-32 Cooper Avenue S From 40th Street S to 33rd Street S Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-56 Washington Memorial Drive From Roosevelt Road to 1st Street S Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-73 Washington Memorial Drive / W Saint Germain Street From 1st Street S to 8th Avenue S Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-75 W Lake Boulevard / 12th Avenue S From 7th Street S to W Saint Germain Street Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-76 College Avenue / County Road 121 From County Road 138 to County Road 75 Major Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-85 7th Street SE / Highway 10 S Frontage / 15th Avenue SE From Highway 10 to 2nd Street SEMajor Collector Within Above Within Above Within Within 2.5
S-159 2nd Street  From Riverside Avenue S to 2nd Street Minor Arterial Within Within Below Below Above Within 2
S-169 75th Avenue NE From Highway 23 to 55th Street NE Minor Collector Within Within Above Above Above Within 2
S-183 County Road 5 From County Road 3 to Central Avenue Minor Collector Within Within Above Above Above Within 2
S-2 County Road 141 From Rausch Lake Road to State Highway 15 Minor Collector Within Within Above Above Above Within 2
S-42 County Road 122 / County Road 138 From State Highway 23 to I-94 Minor Collector Within Within Above Above Above Within 2
S-44 County Road 160 From APO Boundary to County Road 2 Minor Collector Within Within Above Above Above Within 2
S-70 1st Street S / 2nd Street S  From State Highway 15 to Highway 10 Principal Arterial - Other Above Within Within Within Within Within 2
S-77 75th Avenue SE From 17th Street SE to Highway 23 NE Minor Collector Within Within Above Above Above Within 2
S-111 County Road 4 From 54th Avenue N / 50th Avenue N to County Road 4 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Above 1.5
S-131 County Road 120  From State Highway 15 to County Road 1 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Above 1.5
S-139 2nd Street N From Benton Drive to Highway 10 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Below Above 1.5
S-141 Pine Cone Road S  From County Road 120 to 2nd Street S Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Above 1.5
S-152 Benton Drive From State Highway 15 to 1st Street NE Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Above 1.5
S-158 2nd Street S / 1st Street NE From Riverside Avenue S to State Highway 15 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Above 1.5
S-163 Pine Cone Road From 2nd Street to 27th Street Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Above 1.5
S-33 33rd Street S From State Highway 15 to Roosevelt Road Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Above 1.5
S-47 22nd Street S From State Highway 15 to Cooper Avenue S Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Above 1.5
S-50 Minnesota Boulevard From 15th Avenue SE to Highway 10 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Above 1.5
S-98 Wilson Avenue SE / 2nd Avenue S From 3rd Street SE to Benton Drive Major Collector Within Within Within Above Below Above 1.5
S-121 Benton Drive From Highway 10 to State Highway 15 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Above 1
S-160 2nd Street S From Pine Cone Road to Riverside Avenue S Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Above 1
S-35 Cooper Avenue S From 33rd Street S to Cooper Avenue S Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Above 1
S-62 25th Avenue N From Roosevelt Road to 12th Steet to 13th Street N Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Above 1

SCAPO Future Regional Arterials and Collectors Study
Task 5 - Existing Functional Classification Documentation 3 of 4

Attachment C5



Seg. 
ID Name

Current Functional 
Classification

AADT (two 
points)

Trip Length 
(two points)

Speed Limit 
(one point)

Primary Access 
Spacing (half point)

Secondary Access 
Spacing (half point)

Median (half 
point) Total Flags

S-64 Cooper Avenue  From University Drive S to 3rd Street N Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Above 1
S-101 8th Street N From State Highway 15 to 9th Avenue N Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Below Within 1
S-108 County Road 133 From County Road 75 to County Road 4 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-116 12th Street N / 13th Street N / Northway Drive From State Highway 15 to 9th Avenue N Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Below Within 1
S-118 Mayhew Lake Road NE From Highway 23 to Golden Spike Road NE Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-129 County Road 4 / County Road 1  From State Highway 15 to 9th Avenue N Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-132 State Highway 15 From County Road 120 to Highway 10 Principal Arterial - Other Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-136 County Road 4 From County Road 120 to County Road 133 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-14 County Road 47 From Broadway Street E to State Highway 23 Minor Collector Within Within Above Within Within Within 1
S-140 Riverside Avenue S From State Highway 15 to 2nd Street S Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-145 Golden Spike Road NE From Highway 10 NW to Mayhew Lake Road NE Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-155 6th Street S / County Road 133 From County Road 4 to Pine Cone Road S Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-21 County Road 8 SE From APO Boundary to Minnesota Boulevard Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-22 Roosevelt Road From I-94 to Cooper Avenue S / University Drive S Principal Arterial - Other Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-36 Granite View Road From County Road 6 to 33rd Street S Minor Collector Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-40 State Highway 23 From I-94 to State Highway 15 Principal Arterial - Other Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-68 Walte Avenue S / 44th Avenue N  From 2nd Street S to State Highway 15 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-69 7th Street S From Washington Memorial Drive to 5th Avenue S Major Collector Within Within Within Above Below Within 1
S-71 County Road 75 / Division Street  From I-94 to State Highway 15 Principal Arterial - Other Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-82 Lincoln Avenue SE From 15th Avenue SE to 3rd Street NE Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Above Within 1
S-87 3rd Street N / 16th Avenue N / 2nd Street N From State Highway 15 to 10th Avenue N Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Below Within 1
S-100 Lincoln Avenue SE From 3rd Street SE to S Benton Drive Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-122 Pine Cone Road From County Road 134 to County Road 120 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-127 Summit Avenue S From Benton Drive to 2nd Street N Major Collector Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-166 Riverside Ave  From 2nd Street to 27th Street Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-167 7th Street N From Pine Cone Road to Riverside Avenue N Major Collector Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-34 Clearwater Road From Roosevelt Road to Roosevelt Road Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-48 7th Street S / 18th Street S From 10th Avenue S to State Highway 15 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-55 W Saint Germain Street / 33rd Avenue N  From 22nd Street S to 12th Street N Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-57 2nd Street S / Roosevelt Road From State Highway 15 to Cooper Avenue S Principal Arterial - Other Within Within Within Within Above Within 0.5
S-58 15th Avenue SE From Minnesota Boulevard to Highway 10 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-60 Oak Grove Road SW / Maine Prairie Road  From 22nd Street S to Roosevelt Road Major Collector Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-65 10th Avenue N From 7th Street S to 3rd Street N Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-67 2nd Avenue South From 7th Street S to 2nd Street S Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-74 15th Avenue N / 3rd Street N  From Division Street to State Highway 15 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-96 2nd Street N / 1st Street N  From 10th Avenue N to Highway 10 Minor Arterial Within Within Within Above Within Within 0.5
S-88 5th Avenue S From 2nd Street S to 1st Street N Minor Arterial Within Within Within Within Within Within 0

SCAPO Future Regional Arterials and Collectors Study
Task 5 - Existing Functional Classification Documentation 4 of 4

Attachment C5



TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

Date: November 14, 2024 

To: St. Cloud Area Planning Organization Technical Advisory Committee 

From: Bolton & Menk Future Functional Class Arterial and Collector Study Team 

Subject: Task 6: Future Functional Classification System Network and Context Analysis 

I. Introduction
This memo provides an overview of how future functional classification was analyzed for system and 
network connectivity and context analysis. All technical analysis can be viewed on the study webmap 
including the results of the full context analysis process, agency feedback, and system vision at the 
following link:  
https://bmi.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/sidebar/index.html?appid=9a57ac10b4c84867b2d5c2
e9ea3d06e3 

II. Future Functional Classification Segment Identification

Test segments were identified from the existing functional class screening process (See Roadway 
Segment Existing Functional Classification Screening Documentation Technical Memorandum), new 
alignments from the APO’s 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan, and additional connections and new 
alignments or upgrades from local agencies transportation and comprehensive plans. Potential 
functional classifications for each screened and new segment were identified using information from the 
existing functional class screening and local plans. Potential classifications were compared against the 
network in the area around the segment, and a reasonable option was chosen for each combined with 
local agency expertise and preference. New segments were adjusted for network consistency.  

III. Future Functional Class System Segment Context Analysis

In addition to including metrics with existing data and information, the analysis included four different 
factors critical to the segment analysis process: system spacing, growth area considerations, future traffic 
volumes, and environmental constraints.  

Understanding System Spacing 
Segment spacing was evaluated to understand how the existing and planned functionally classed 
highway system will serve the region. To accomplish this, two buffer sizes were used for this analysis: 

• A three-mile buffer for Interstates and Principal Arterials.
• A half-mile buffer for Minor Arterials, Major Collectors, and Minor Collectors.

Attachment C6

https://bmi.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/sidebar/index.html?appid=9a57ac10b4c84867b2d5c2e9ea3d06e3
https://bmi.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/sidebar/index.html?appid=9a57ac10b4c84867b2d5c2e9ea3d06e3


Date: November 14, 2024 
Page: 2 
 

  

 

While no concerns were identified with the three-mile buffer, the half-mile buffer area revealed gaps in 
coverage where no future roadway was identified to serve certain locations. These areas were 
compared to growth areas and reviewed for potential planned roadway alignments or upgrades of the 
existing local system to serve these areas.  
 
Growth Area Considerations 
The 2050 Saint Cloud APO growth area was included in the test segment context analysis. Using the 
socioeconomic (SE) data already incorporated into the APO’s 2050 travel demand model, areas with 
anticipated growth in both households and employment centers were identified in the urban or soon-to-
be urbanizing area. Test segments were reviewed based on their proximity to areas of projected 
household and employment growth to understand potentially long-term changing characteristics of the 
corridor’s context. This information, combined with the spacing buffer areas, assisted in understanding 
the network coverage of the future functionally classed system. 
 
Future Volume Outputs from Test Future Functional Class Model Run  
Each test segment was included in a new 2050 travel demand model run. The segment inputs 
incorporated into this model run included both the new test future functional classification on select 
roadway corridors as well as new fiscally unconstrained improvements and connections identified 
through the context analysis.  
 
The resulting volume output from this technical exercise demonstrated how new alignments or roadway 
upgrades impacted traffic patterns in the region. This, in turn, assisted in understanding the impact the 
test segment changes made to the overall network and if the modeled results were the desired outcome 
for each particular segment.  
 
Output volumes by segment reflect aggregation from smaller model segments to the larger study 
segments. The purpose of this data exercise was to understand big changes related to changing the 
function of a roadway or adding a new connection. Volume outputs were reviewed for individual 
segments to understand if the test future functional classification assignment in the model matched the 
expected future roadway operations as predicted by the model.  
 

Environmental Context Analysis 
Finally, a context analysis was performed to understand environmental constraints for each study 
segment and potential future improvements. Environmental factors that were considered include: 

• Environmental Justice and Title VI populations  
• Wetlands 
• Drinking water sources  
• Sites of sensitive or significant biological diversity 
• DNR Management Areas 
• Known historic properties  
• Scientific and Natural Area boundaries 
• Steep slope areas 

Additionally, three environmental factors within the City of St. Cloud boundaries were mapped and 
displayed on the environmental context analysis web map: 

Attachment C6



Date: November 14, 2024 
Page: 3 
 

  

 

• City of St. Cloud Natural Sites 
• City of St. Cloud Natural Areas 
• City of St. Cloud Natural Area Locations 

Since these three layers only had information withing the City of St. Cloud boundary and not the entire 
APO, they were included for reference only and did not factor into the context analysis.    

Each factor was mapped (see web map for more details) and any segment that ran through any 
identified environmental features was flagged (one flag per environmental feature). Assignment of a flag 
to a study segment represents that study segment’s proximity to that specific environmental feature 
and does not identify specific environmental impacts or risk. Approximately 10% of the analysis 
segments had 6-8 flags and about 25% of the study segments had 5 flags. The results of the 
environmental context analysis are informational, since the environmental risk varies significantly 
depending on which feature is impacted. The analysis provides initial insight into the proximity of study 
segments to various environmental features and does not offer an in-depth environmental review.  

IV. Agency Focus Groups and Feedback  
Agency focus groups were held on Oct. 8 and Oct. 9, 2024, to discuss the future functional classification 
segment evaluation process with stakeholders. Each focus group session included a recap of the test 
segment identification process, a review of the environmental context analysis, a presentation of the 
segment evaluation process and outputs, and a discussion of the future system recommendations 
process. Comments from agencies were received and incorporated into the webmap.  

During and shortly after the focus group sessions, agencies were able to add new segments for a future 
functional classification designation, removed certain segments, and changed designation based on 
context analysis. The comment tracker attachment includes comments received by agency.  

V. Recommended System Vision 
The study recommendations establish a vision for the future function of existing and new roads in the 
APO’s planning area. While the future functional classification designation does not directly correlate to 
roadway design, it can impact long-term roadway planning by defining a range of future roadway needs 
including potential future right of way and access spacing for a corridor. By completing this study effort, 
APO member jurisdictional planners and engineers can gain better insight into the future system 
connections and roadway function in order to better address future regional mobility and operational 
needs.  Figure 1 depicts the recommended future functional classification system vision.  

Attachment C6


	0. 11202024 Agenda
	AGENDA
	APO Technical Advisory Committee SPECIAL Meeting


	3A. 10312024 TAC Minutes
	SAINT CLOUD AREA PLANNING ORGANIZATION TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC) MEETING
	PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
	consideration of consent agenda
	Consideration of the applicants for the FY 2029 Highway safety Improvement Program (HSIP) soliciation.
	Future Regional Arterials and collectors project management team coordination discussion
	Ms. Stenson presented the agenda for the Future Regional and Arterials and Collectors discussion. She reviewed the process and steps taken thus far in the study. Mr. Babb stated working in conjunction with the jurisdictions, test segments were identif...
	Mr. Babb stated after the initial test model run was completed, the consultant team was able to gain a better understanding of future traffic volumes on these roadways.
	Ms. Stenson discussed the environmental context analysis that was completed on the initial test network. This included overlaying approximately 16 different environmental layers on a map with the proposed functional classification map. This analysis w...
	Ms. Stenson also provided information on recommendations to update the existing functional classification on 12 roadway segments. She indicated six segments the consultant team would recommend upgrading the existing functional classification from majo...
	Ms. Stenson stated the next steps will be to receive comments from the TAC on public review materials by Nov. 5, 2024. A 30-day public comment period will commence starting Nov. 12, 2024 through Dec. 13. Ms. Stenson said an open house is scheduled to ...
	safe streets and roads for all (SS4a) PROJECT MANAGEMENT TEAM COORDINATION DISCUSSION
	Other Business and Announcements
	Adjournment

	4A. TIP Administrative Modification memo
	5A. SCAPO Regional Arterials TAC_2024-11-20 (1)
	5B. REVISED_4.1 Access Spacing Memo_St Cloud APO 2024-11-13
	II. APO Member Agencies’ Access Management
	V. Transportation Research Board’s Access Management Manual: Components of Access Location and Spacing
	VI. Access Spacing Consideration
	VII. Summary

	5C. 4.2 ROW Preservation Memo_St. Cloud APO 2024-11-13
	II. Member Agency ROW Preservation Guidelines and Policies
	III. Agency Summary
	IV. Regional Perspective for Right-of-Way Preservation Guidance

	5D. REVISED_5.0_Existing Conditions Flagging Methodology
	II. Methodology Overview
	III. Criteria Ranges
	Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT)
	Speed Limit
	Median Condition
	Trip Length
	Access Spacing
	Future AADT
	Growth Areas

	IV. Existing Functional Classification Data Profile Segment Screening
	Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT)
	Trip Length
	Speed Limit
	Primary and Secondary Access Spacing
	Median

	V. Recommended Existing Functional Class Changes

	5E. Task 5.0 - Existing Functional Classification Documentation
	5F. REVISED_6.0 FFC Network-Context Analysis Memo
	I. Introduction
	II. Future Functional Classification Segment Identification
	III. Future Functional Class System Segment Context Analysis
	Understanding System Spacing
	Growth Area Considerations
	Future Volume Outputs from Test Future Functional Class Model Run
	Environmental Context Analysis
	IV. Agency Focus Groups and Feedback
	V. Recommended System Vision




